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g} Backsround information
Machakos University is 4 prémer University whose core mandate is to teach, train, conduct

vesesreh, dnnovate, offer community servies, generate new knowledse and facilitate
technatagical transfer. Being the only public University in Machalkos County, the University
plays a leading role in providing scholarly educstion through training, research and innovatian
for industrial and socio-econcmic transformation for the community and the Country at large.

Machakos University as an institution was founded in 1957 as a Technical Rural Training
schoal, 1t became Machakos Technical and Trade School in 1958 and Machakos Techical
school in 1967, Later in' T987, it was converted to a Technical Training Instifute, known as
Machakos Technical Training Institute (MTTI). By a Legal Notice No.130 of 16'% September
2011, the Instinite became Machakos University College, a constituent college of Kenyatta
University. On T October, 2016, Machakoes University College was chartered and became a
full-fledged public University by H.E Ulmru Muigai Kenyatia, the President and Commander
in Chief of the Kenya Defense Forces of the Republic of Kenya: Machakos University has
therefore, a technical backgronnd and has a niche towards Engineering, Technology and
Business. The University has been able to atfyact, develop and retain highly trained, motivated
and experienced academic and administeative staff who continue (o support the wide range of
courses offered in its schools. The University is currently offering thirty-six (36) undergraduate
programmes and thirty-four (34) post graduate programmes in the following six {6} schoals:

1) Echool of Agricultural, Envivonment nnd Health Sciznces
il Department of Agricualtural Educalion and Extension
f)  Department of Agribiisiness
iy Depactment of Environmental Sciences
Iv)  Department of Public and Community Hexdlth
2} Schioo! of Education
iy Department of Educational Management and Corriculum studies
i} Department of Educational Communication and Technalogy.
iii}  Department of Educational Psychology, Early Childhood and Special Meeds
Education.

Y
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KEY INFORMATION AND MAMAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

2} School of Business, Ecoioimics, Hospitality and Tourizm Mawagement
i) Department of Business Administration
i Department of Economics
i}  Department of Accounting, Banking and Finance
iv)  Depertment of Tourism Management
43 School of Humanities and Social Sciences
iy Depariment of Linguistics and Languazes
i}  Department of Social Scicnces,
i) epartmenit of Fushion Design and Marketing
5) School of Engineering and Technology
i) Department of Mecharical and Manufacturing Engineering
i) Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering
iii)  Departinent af Bullding and Civil Engineering
i¥)  [epartment of Computing amd Information Technology.
6) Schoolof Pure and Applied Sclences
i) Department of Mathematics, Statistics and Actuarial Science
il  Deparbmentof Physical Sciences
i) DPepartment of Biclogical Sciences
In mddition, the University has a Graduate School which co-ordinates post graduate
PrOZrammes,

The University i located at the heart of the Lower Eastern Region, and a kilometer away from
Machakas town Centre along Machakos/ Wote Boad. 1t is about 66 km from Naivobl and 28

ke fromm Konza Technopolis.

Machakes University has threo ‘divisions; namely, Academic and Student affairs,
Admtinistration, Flaniing and Finance and, Research, Innovation and Linkages, The University
has growtt in terms of staft and sodent numbers, linkages and partnerships with public,
private, national and global organizations,

Wi
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The University has held six (8) graduation ceremonies after being chartered and boasts of
7,564 gradustes. The nstitution has also held four (4) internutional conferences bringine
tagether researchers from all over the world, a feat which has enviched research i the region.
It has continued participating in extea-curriculum activities like games and music which have
been insteumental i enhancing Lnl:rtt'dmrﬂupnmnt. Lately, the University, in a partnership
with students, managed to develop, pilot and implement an innovation on e- voting which has
been facilitating smocth rurming of student elections. The University is certified under this 150
BO01:2018 which hag seen it maintain and confinually improve its gquality sevvices and
customer satisfaction.

The. University’s stakeholders include: Students, staff, Alumni, Parents/guardians, Eponsors,
Regulatory Bodies, Ministry of Education, Frimary and Secondary Schools, Other Minigties,
Departments and Government Agencies, County Governments, Local community, Other
ingritutions of higher learning both local and international, Suppliers/contractors, Non-
governmental Organtzations . Community Based Organizations, International Orsanizations,
Incustries, Relizious Organizations, Trade Unions and the public in general.

b} Principal Activities

The principal activities of Machakos University ave Teaching/Training, Research, Inmovation,
atd community service

Visi
A preferved University of Excellence in Scholarship and Service Delivery
Mis

Ta Provide scholarly education through Training, Research and Innavation for Industrial and
socip-EconEmic iransicrmaton of our coimmmumnities

Mandate

The core mandate of Machakos University 15 to Teach, Train, Conduct Reésearch, Innovate, and
Collaborate, Generate New Enowledse and Provide Commiunity Service

Wii
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Fhilosophy

The Fhilosophy of Machakas Uiniversity is fo provide trans-formuative leadership in Teaching,
Training, Resedrch, Innovation, Industrial and Technology transfer for wealth creation

Cote values
o [ritesrity
o Accoumtability
s Professonalism
*  Inclusivity
s Creativiby
o Teamwork
o  Pquity ™ °
¢) Eey Management
The Execution of the University’s mandate is spearheaded by the following:

(a) The Chancellor

il University Council

{c) The Yice Chancellor

{dy DUniversity Management Board
{2) University Senate

d) Fiduciary Mansgement
The key management personnel who held office during the finuncigl pertod ended 30" June,
20272 and wie had divect fiduclary respotsibility were:

Designation Natme
{a) Vice Chancellor Prof, Lucy W. Irungu
(b} Ag. DVC (Administvation, Flanning & Finance) Frof. Fredrick Ogola
fc) DYC (Academnic & Student Affairs) Prof. Joyce Agalo
i) DV (Research, Innovation & Linkages) Praf. Peter M. Mwita
fe} Ag. Chief Finance Officer CPA Teresia Mutunzga
(f) Ag. Chief Frocurement Officer Ms, Alice Njeri
tg) Chief Internal Auditor CPA John Nzure
th) Head of Legal Affuirs & Council Secretarial Advocate Mumbi 5. Mwihurih

¥ili
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&) Fduciary Oversight Arrangements
The Council provides strategic divection, exercise control and remain accountable through
effective leadership, entrepreneurship, integrity and good judgment. The University Council
oversight arrangement is coovdinated by the following Council Committeas:

() Finance, Flanning and Development Committee

(b} Academic and Research Commities

(] l"[:I.I.I.'I:'I.EIJ'I. Besourvces Commitbes

i) Andit and Compliance Committee

) Headguarters -
PO Beee T3G-30100
Wote Road

Machakos, KENYA

) University Contacis
Cell: 0735 247939 / 0795 207117
E-mail: infofmksa ke
Website: worw,tilisiae ke

h) University Bankers

| 1. National Bank of Kenya
. Pl Bozx 274-90100
Machakos
Accounts held: Fees Collection Account, Operations Account, Development Account
2. KCB Bank Kemya
PO Box 30-80100
Machakog
Accounts held: Fees Collection Account, Research Account, Chancellor's Scholarship
Account, Endowment Pund Account
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3. Standard Chartered Bank
P.O. Box 28-80700

Machakos
Accounts held: Fees Collection Account, MEsU Hobel Account

4. Equity Bank
F.O Box 2453 - 20100 |

Machakos
Accounts held: Fees Callection Account

5. Co-operalive Bank
F.0. Box 1250-80100

Machakos.
Accourts held: Fees Collection Account [

i) Independent Auditors
Anditor Geneval
Office of the Auditer Geénéral
Anniversuy Towers, University Way
F. 0. Box 30084, GRO 007100,
Niirobi, KENYA,

i} Principal Legal Advisor
The Attorney Genaral
State Low Office, Harambes Avenue
PO Box 40112, City Square 00200,

Malrobi, BENYA

X
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Dr; Christopher Gatama Cakahu, PHD
L. Chrigloplier Gatuma Gakabe holdy & BSe (Hons) and PRD in Zoolagy (Wiology of Conservation) from
University of Nairobi, He underfook povi-doctors! researelt af the Aberdeen University in UK, and &t Gritfith
iriversily in Bristane Avstralia and at San Diago State {nieesih-Crlitormia, He isa GEF {Global Ervironment
Factiiy and EIA (Environmental inpact Assesunent) rainer and praciifonss, sxpert aid o centitiod in PRINCES
PRofecrs IN Comiroflead Ervaironmenis).

L. Gakatia is & re-Rrown scademician of fei vears stamding st Universty of Nairobi as well a5 at Mof University.
e fas prllished widely and also edited several books. He was the Chatvman of Cowmnetl nt Garisss Universiey,
untl fune, 2021, He was appotnted Chairman of Cowncil, Machakos University an @ July 2022 by H.E Hou.
Lihiarar Kenyatia, #he Fresdent of the Republic of Kenya and the Commander in Chief of the Armed Foroes,

He fias 15 years’ experiénce within Hhe Cnited Natfons where :?Hwaw positions. These inclded being the
; o OB ;L

Assistant Country Divector in cllarge of programniey i Dnifed Nallons Developnent Frogramme (UNDP) in

Kerpa wivere he doudled ax the Encrey, Environment apmd Natiral Resources Advisor and team Joader

Friar to foiming the Uiifed Nations, D, Gakaliu worked a5 a researchier and Biodiversity advisor at Wildlis
Conservalion Infernational (WCI and the infernational Unien for Conservation of NMature (TUONY. Dr Gakahn is
currently & principal constlinnt with Oifos Africa Environment Services Lid, A firmt and & center of excellence
dedicafed fo affering protessonal services in sustainable development, policy advocacy aridd proSTRNINING (1 AreAs
of energy, enviranment and nafial resources and in chnate chanee niitleation and aciapiation, Over the fast fee
(.3} years, Ire as been & Board mesmber af Kenya Fovest Service, Kenya Touris Fedaragion and Ecotourism Kenya,
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UNIVERSITY COUNCIL MEMBERS {Continued. ...) ,
|
Chairman, Human Resources Committea of Council !
O Mareared Makemiy i o miedical doclon, & peblic: lrealdy specialist ahd a
Takemi Feflow i Imternafions! Healdd ftom Harvaed TH Chan School of
Furblic Health, She fus vast experence dévelopiie, mangeins Implaretbigg,
resareoling, and fdvising fealth programs and siiutona! stremeiiening in
the regton for better Deaitlh outeomes, Margaret bis worked for the public anea
prfvate seotors hofding fileh feadership amd management positions; providing
siraiegie dirccifons and dinking including developmient and inplamentation
af palicnes, strategie plans identiiping amd des{gning sew projects aifghed o
& ifie host cowntiy’s thematic policiés and stmfesgre plins faking fead rofes in
— . T, grRimmaiie, fnanctal and sdministrative ovensiglil of condex maional dna

Dr. Margaret Makumi, Medical B . 3 R
DoctorPublic Health Specialist donar Rinded fealtt and popdafion redated programs mnd phofects.

Council Member and

Chairman, Audit and Compliance Committee of Council
M. Abelie ivan exporienced and suoccssiul conumerolad nuntager and lesder

WEN axtensive aXperialion gaitted n. sales aRd iarkeling of phannacediic!

Prodirctsand Vacoines i B At

He sz pnevently 8 pharmmcetfical copsaltant Wil Evater Pharmeceniioals,
K

Ha iz inmedinle former Comumercial Dfveptor for GlaxabmirtiEing (GEKLE

Arifoa Fhavmacenticals

M. Abefia iz cuppently pursuing 8 Docioe of Fhdosophy (Fh.0D ) in Business |

Achninisization, University of Nairobi,

He d i halder of o Aaster of Business Administration degree (MBA)Y from

Mr. Patrick Abella Mkl Urrversfr-Dissinga
He hay Bechelor of Scrdrice i Blochenistry and - Zoplpey, (Baol 1897,
Liriversity of Natvohy,
|
|
Kii
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Council Member and

Chairman, Academic and Research Cammittes af Couneil

Dy Zipporalt Midea holels the FIL.D. in Bducagion of the University of Nairoby,
specialising in Chrvicudum Sfudies. She turthar holds 8 Master of Edvcation (ALEL)
in Bducation Adpiinisteation and Flanming and 8 Sachelor of Education (B.E4)
maforing i Liferattre and Lingwistios, botli of the Dniversify of Naivohi, Dy AMutes
s recedved tairing in leadership and stategic managerent from the Kerjya
Sehool of Govermment and she & & cerliffed 180 systems apdifor having recefves
Ltsniingg fiom the Renya Burean of Stircdurds (KEBS). She is an education resesrches
and writer:

L Mtea iz currently an Education Consaltamt with Pulilix (Africa) i wihers she
is alwo a director. fetween 2007 and 2020, Dr Mutea participated in research
wudies with HIVOS Eavt Adrics, Educatipn Development Trust and ihe Minisiny of
Edication (MOLE). At the MOEL, she was the Team Leacder for the Baseline Study for
Early Crade Mathematics Assesaneni {EGMAY. For seven years beiween 2008 ana
076, DrMutea was 3 Leclurer in Edecafion at Maasai Mara Uhuversiiy where sfe
diso supervised postgraduate students. She served in different capacifics as
cxaminations  coordingtor for the school of education, tesching  practios
cacrdinator, Chatrman of the Department of Curriidrnr, Insraciion and
Fducational Marnageriont, member of the Urniversity Senate and member of the
Board of Posfgradpalie Studies. She served fn severnl commiitess including:

Dr. Zipporah Mutea,
Phd Frogranunes Review Commities and Acadeniic St Recraitmeant Comnittes, She
s co-authored ten Secondary School Cnelich fexthoois gnd Teachers” Guddes
published by Longenan Kenya Publishers. She fas alse pubiished fournal articles ana
presented papers in many conferences nations!ly and internationally. Dy Murtea &3
a member of Kenys Oval Literature Associationr (KOLA) and Soclety of Educational
Regegrely and Evalnation in Kenys (SERER),

Sfe warked af the Kemya Natfomal Examinaiions Conncil (RNEC) az & Test
Developer, Researcher and Examinations Mandger. While windking #t KNEC, [
Miitesd coordinated the sfudy thal esiablished the National Assessment Systern for
Mormtoring Learner Aclievemient (INASMEAL As & secondary solipof feacher and in
eriployee of the Teachers” Service Comrmission (TSC), Dr Mutes el i several
secondary scliools incliding Meru School and Starche Boys™Cenire,

xiil
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UNIVERSITY COUNCIL MEMBERS (Continued. ..

Council Member
Chairman, Finance, Planning and Developmeant

Committee of Council

M Matvir has over fiffecn years” exporence i fhe gocil deveiopement seckor a5 an
advocais, Gicilitator, and research copselfamnt, with o special o omn fan FEs,
areadrisfy g incfinsive developamant

Ar At haldy MEA Bom Lnfversity of Narroby, Kenva, where fio-soeciafized in
Strategic. Management and MA — Haman Rights from the same institution. His
Bichelors Degree s B wilth arolonlle mavor in foonomics and Socialagy. fichard lias
done ahort courses undera feflowship mn Lniversify of flingdiy — Cilana = \Clampaisn
a5 wellas lernational fnstitnta of Socizl Sfedies — Dan Haggy, MNetfeddands,

M Maftva o3 curvently working as a Courtry Director for an fnfernasonad Noz-
Goversimantal Organization. He fas previogsly worked with other O8O a8 well as with
e Kerya Covernunent in diiferent capacities,

Mr. Peter Njoroge

Rep, Cabinet Secretary,

The National Treasury and Planning

M. Peter Niorage is a Direcior of Flanning at the National Teeasury, He holds
a Master of Science deogree in Development Planning from e Technical
Cowfversity of Doptimund (Germmany), Aasteny of Soience Deense (0 Sirafeelc
Manggement from Mo Eniversity. He fias over 27 years” experience in Folicy
Formudation, Sectora] aned Steategic Flanming, Finance amnd Sudeeting botf af e
MNattorad and Connty fevels

Dr. Joyea Ngure,
Ph.D.

Rep. Principal jecretary,

ftate Department of University Education and Resaarch

Koy Qualiffoations: FhiD in Vegetahle Sciences, Nanfing Agricufttire Universiy. She
alss has Mavlers and Baclislor of Scignid degrees i Horlicalture from Egerton
LIRp VeI

Work Expariance: She has g wealth of experietice in areds of research amd prafect
coordingiion and manggement, Currenldy, the Assistant Direcior Rescarch in e
Ministry of Edwcation in the Directovate of Research Science and Tecfinology, afie iy
also the frofect Coordinator for e Nafiomal fhysical Sciences and Research
Laboratories as well as ihe Frofect Officer in the Science and Technology Parks
Initiathve Frofect

Ny
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UNIVERSITY COUNCIL MEMBERS {Continued....)

Vice Chanceller and Secretary to the Council

Prof. Lucy W. Irungu, PhD

Frof. Lucy W bungu gradusted from ifie University of Naivoly with a BSc Fiest class honoues degres
(Enformology?. She holds an MSe fn Enfomolagy and Applied Furasitology and & PhD in Entotnolagy, botl from

the Liverpoal Solfoo! of Teapical Medictie, University af Liverpood Raving been awarnded Commotweaith Fund
for Technical Cooperation and Association of Cotttionwealth Universities (ACL) scholarships tepectively.

frof Irungu foined the Tntatnational Centre of lnsect Plivsiology and Beolosy (TCIPE) in Ausust 1978 as 4

Lraduate resedrel scholar during wiich time she prrsned for MSe and PhD studios at the Liverpool School of
Tropical Medicing, Cndversity of Liverpool. Muring this fime, she carried ouf research on veclors of
Ledsfirnaniaets and Filariasis,

Frof frungu joined e Dept of Zoolagy, Difversity of Nairoby os.a fecturer in 1988, She served as Chajrman
of Deparfinent of Zoology from 7999 to 2004 and was appointed Frinciad for the Colfege of Biologteal and
Fliysical Seferices in 2004 a position she Reld wntd March 201 whep she was aproinied the Firse DPaputy Vice
Clrancellor, Research Produciion and Extersion, folfowing @ competitive process,

Frof Intsig assuermed the post of first Vice Chancedior of Machakos University on 20th Fefwuary 2075,

dn 2011, she was a member of the Higher Edyeriton Task Foroe and chafred the Science, Technology and
Innovation Committee which developed dhe Science Technology and Innovation Bill, later enacted as the ST
Act 2015, Slie belongs fo several professional orgamizations, has sarved as o memnber in several bourds ared 1
currently the Chaivman of the Academic and Mangeement Board KWETL Boared imenntber JRS Biodiversity
Fouiticlation (LSA) and Presicdent of EARIMA. Frof Iresa is a Fellow of the Royal Society of Tropical medicie
and Hyzfene and Fellow of the Kerys Nattonal Academy of Sciences and a tember of the Kenya Institute of
Manageinent

Frow, feuegn is 8 vibrand researcher in vecior biofoey and fiost-vector-parasite seltion whips with speciffe
inferest i malavia vectors and parasites of neglected diseases. She has published extensively fn refaresd
Journiads and has mentored and stipervised severs! posteraduate research students. She contines engqeed in
rosearch and supervision of postzraduate studerts fo dite, in addition fo promoting inmevation.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Frof. Tucy W. Irungi
Yige Chancellor

Ph.Dh = Medical Entomnology and Applied Parasitology.
The Academic and Administrative Head of the University.

i e

Frof. Fredrick Ogola Praf, Peter M, Mwita
Ag. EEHL#Y.FJHM Deputy Vice Chancellor (RIL)

Prof, Joyee ).
Deputy Vice C

Fh.D. (Education). Fh.DD. (Educational Foundations), Ph, . {Statistics).
In-Charge of Acadenic A In-Charge of Administrafion, Eet --:_‘lmr:ge of I{?:SEHL'{“JL.
Simdent Afrairs Flanning end Finance fringyation & Linkages

Prof, Ezra O, Okemwa . Sta 1
Registrar (ARA) Az, Registrar (RIL)
Ph. D (Enowledgs MBA {(Finance), CPATEL Ph. [, {Human Resource Fli.D. (Envircmental
Managentent). Supports the Financial management) Science),
Stipports the functionsof  Management function Supports the functionsof — 3upports the funetions
iz Academic % Student Administration and of the Research,
Affadrs Divizion. Planning Inmovation & Linkages
Divisicn

Arivmm Mu.mi:n S Mw:hurl'h

L :I M :tnmn:rnann:dnd EII:nmLm:_-,-]
In-Charee of the Legal function of the University
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

I wish to present the 202 1/Z022 Annual
Report and Financial Statements for the
Fimancial Year ended 30" [une, 2022,
[ruring the year, the University confimaed
to recover from the effects of COVID-18
pandemic.: The year experienced some
turbulent times due te-electioneerlitg mood.
In addition, University was affected by the
skyrocketing prices of goods and services,
The adverse effects ciused some of planngd
activities to be postponed.

Despite  these  fingncial botHenecks, the
University Council confinued o meet {ts
finpncial obligations as per the Stratezic
Plann of the University,. The LUniversity
continued with the  construction of the
Tuition and Office Block Complex as one of
its flagship projects. Further, the Univeisity
centinued to support the implementation of
TVET programmes: which complementad

a 1500 50012015 Certified |

Kvil

the  University™s  revenucs
internally, To sheamline

resource of the University, the Council
approved the swaft establishment for the
period from 2021 fto 2026 and the
implenentation is on course, Therefore, e

Zenerared
the  hiasian

University Council continues fo play its
strategic and oversight roles of mobilization
and optimal ufilization of the availabie
TEsoUrCes,

The University Coundil appreciates the
continued support from ' the Government in
terms of development grants earmarked for
our flagship project during the period as
weell a8 the normal capitation released to the
University during the year.

The Council would like to urge the
and ‘other dovelopment
pariners to continue funding the existing

Government

#nd earmarked capital project and increase
their financial support to the University.
This will enzble the nstitation o delives
her core mandate and make ‘Ther
contributions for the Big Four Agenda and
Viston 2030,

Durng the Financial Year, the University
Counctl in consultation with the University
MManagensent Geard and Senate continned
with the review and implementation of the

e
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued.. ..)

University's Strategle Plan 2021-2024 in line with the University’s mandage. This was to ensure
the University affers effective Academic programmes that are market-driven and meet the

demancds of the society.

The University has continually served the intevests of the shudents by prioritizing the delivery
af guality programmes and embracing the student’s welfare.

All in all, T widh to thank the Government and all stakeholders, suppliers and all sarvice
providers for their support and continued cooperation.

As 1 conclude, once again, 1 wish to emphasize that the University Coungil is fully conunithed
to working with the various clients and partoers towards enhancing the University’s
capacities in delivering her mandate.

Dr, Christopher Gatama Gakahu
Chairmarn of Council

xviii

.3 TS0 900 12201 S Cerilied o i cnienn i o wotanimg Heiphes. in Transfoeming Aty amd Econony




Mcturkos Lnfvarsiy
Anritead Koepoets o Flran el sferesaants for e poae cneled Sooe A0, 2037
REPORT OF THE VICE CHANCELLOR

[ taks this opporfunity to presemt the
Machakos University Financial Staternents
for the vear ended 30% June, 2022, Once
Azain the findncial year was not any
different from the previous year. The
Liniversity had its share of economic-and
tiitemcial challenges coming from post
COVID effects. However, am plessed to
report that the University comtinued to
tulfill its mandate and operated under very
strict financial diseipline. The University
priovitized mainly on  teaching and
training, research, innovaton, linkages and
commmnity cutreach. As we are all awnre,
ather economic challenzes the University
faced included reduction of Government
funding as well as high cost of living

the accreditation for various market-criven
programs and courses. The University to
offer degree programs 25 well as diploma
TVET courses. The University has embraced
the blended learning as the ODel, and
integrated ICT teaching services are being
established.

To assist reedy students, the University
thraugh  its work-study  progranime,
students work on campus and  their
compensation goes towards paying their
fees and upkeep expenses, This amounted
to RShs 377,550 in the finuncial vear, The
University through its internal bursacy has
tacilitated the disbursement of EShs, |
million which benefited the needy students.
In acldition to this, the Charcellor's

expericnced - duaring - the  elecHonesring scholarship  progranimme  and  Rattansi
period. scholarships assisted large nomber of

brilliant students who cannet afford to meet
Academic and Student affairs their fees requirements. The Universily

Thiz academic year the University had a
comprehensive CUE audit and inspection in
all our programs. A réport was given and
presently the University is working on the
exit recommeéndation report by CUE, The
Cniversity however continues o seek for

Xix

takes the welfare of the smdents as it
number one priovity i suppart for the
acadentic environment students in campuis
and we are grateful for these efforts
towards this end.

—_— ]
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REPORT OF THE VICE CHANCELLOR (Confinmed. ...)

The Division of Besearch, Innovatlon and Linkages has continued to grow its research fund and
a5 at Mearch, 2022, it had KES5.492 Million cumulatively, The Dhvision is grateful to maty
orgatizations and institutions that continued to sapport research activities. Such orgamzations
siech as Women in Science for the Developing Wetld (OWSD), International Centre for Genetic
Engineering ind Biotechiology (ICGEB), Naticnal Disaster Management Authority, Norwegian
Partnership Prozramme for Global Academic Copperation (NORHED 1T portfalio 2021-Z026),
Kenya Medical Research Institute, Natiohal Research Fund (MRF), FLAIR, Transter Multisort
Elekbronik (TME) and MNeeds Assessment for developing Capacity for Improved Aguatic
Resource. Development in Aftica (NARCADA). Tn addition to the growing ressarch grant
partfolio, members of staft have cumulatively published over 127 papers in peer refereed
journals and continue to participate and present papers in international conferences.

In the partmership and collaboration front; we wish to mention Tianjin City Vocational with
whtom we have fogether successfully established the Luban Workshop. The Warkshop supporis
ICT degree courses in Cloud Computing and Information Securily &s well as related ICT skills
development and video conferencing. Sofar Afric have also partnered with Machakos
Uneversity to gstablish a Solar Assembly and Manufactiring Flant, Alexiander Von Humboldt
Foundation has glven KES 4M to purchase leboratory equipment (Ulira-Figh Ferformance
Liquid Chromatography -Ultra HPLC), UNESCO is supporting acquisition of Electrochemical
Analyzer at a cost of KES2.8M and supporting academic staff at the School of Pure and Applied
Sciences to conducta study at a cost of KES BM. nternational Centre for Genetic Engineering
has supported the University to scquire Automstic Elisn and Washer that is currently
supporting research in COVID-19 in the University al 8 cost of KES 5B0.000.The Transfer
Multisort Eleltronik (TMVE) has also supported the Tmiversity with equipment worth KES
657,000, [ast but not least, Konzea Technopolis Development Authority continues to support
innovation capacity building in the University. Through these partnerships in the past vear, the
University continucs to' develop infrastructural support bo ligk the academia 1o indusiry,

XX
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REPORT OF THE VICE CHANCELLOR {(Contired. .. )
I underscering the yalue of staff and studend exchange, the University has two Erasmus+
Progranumes with the University of West Attica and Panleion University in Greece. Dr. Alice
Nzioka, Dean, School of Touriam and Hospitality benefited from the ERASMUSH Staii mobility
Presranmme at the Universily of West Atfcn in Greece, One student in the School of Totirism
and Hospliality 15 scheduled to travel in the ERASMUS Student mobility in the same University.
The University continues to promote the sharing of research experiences through confersnces.
In the vear under consideration, we had our 4th International Conference which was held from
14h - 16th June, whose theme was: Promotfig Susiafiable Development, throneh Disiptive
Regearch and fnnovation. We temain focused on the University’s Mission and purposes to
inderscore best resemrch [:lr_an;ti:n_zh..

Diiving the yesr, the University continues o construct Tuition and Office Block. The building
has been behind schedule at the end of this period due to challenges in government funding.
The project is over 2% complete and requires about Kshs, 437 million to be complele, The
buildingis intended Lo provide offices, bonrdrooms, labaratories, lecture rooms and conference
vooms thus, significantly reducing space deficiency in the University.

Concerning security, the University has completed the construction of a biometrit gate and
will becoitie in e in the frst quanter of the 2022-2023 Financial Year. Thizs project estimated
cost was Eshs. & million.

To address souned financial manageiment, the University continued to put in place necessary
financial, procorement and inlernal control measures on resource utilization to ensure that it
meets the targets of revenue collection and cost control measures. However, these measures
comtinue to be adversely atfected by COVID- 19 Pandemic as well a3 clectioneering econoniic
climate. During the yeat, the University successfully completed the staff establishment policy
and is currently being implemented. | am pleased to convey my appreciation and gratitude o
the University Council, Mansgement and all the members of smff for their support,
carnmitrrient and dedication to their work and their efforts that luve seen Machakos University
attain its financial obligations.

XXi
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REPORT OF THE VICE CHANCELLOR (Continued.. .)

Finalty, despite the many challenges the University faced during the year, T am glad to report
that the University managed to stay afloat finangially. I therefore, express my sincere gragitide
lo the Government of Kenya and particularly the State Department of University Education-and
Research for the recurrent funding of the University as per the estirmates.

prof Y g

axii

,ﬁ TS0 0012015 Certified 1.5 i e Soariiy Heiphins o TransiGroneg ety ond Econpmy




P

Machakas Univeswity
Adrmid Repenty waed FInwimedal sennsny fir il g ear emied dene 20, 2022
STATEMENT OF MACHAKOS UNIVERSITY PERFORMANCE AGAINST FREDETERMINED
OBJECTIVES FOR FY 2021/2022

Machakos University has six (8) strategic pillars and objectives for the Financial Year
202172022 intormed by the 2021-2024 Strategic Flan. These strategic pillars are as follows:

Pillar 1: Academ:c Excellence

Fillar 2: Human Resource Management

Fillar 3: Performance

Pillar 4: Rescarch, Science, Technology and Innavation
Pillar B: lifrastructure

Fillar &: Financial Growth aned Sustainahilisy

Machakos University prepares its annual work plans based on the above six (6) pillars,
Assessnent of the Board’s performance dgainst ifs annual work plan is done on a quarterly
basis, The University achieved most of the performance targets set for the FY 2021/202 2 period
for her strategic pillavs, as indicated in the table below:

xxiii
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Gioad corporate governance in any Stake Corporation is central to its effectiveness and sustainability,
It plays a leading role in how Corporations and their Bageds of Manigement ave divected, cottrolied
and held to account. Corporate governance, therefors, encompasses the systems, practices and
procedures by which the individual corporation s vegulated in arder {0 remaln competitive; ethioal,
sustainable and fad

Machakos University Council adheres io principles of openness, integrity and accountabiliey in itz
stewardship of the University’s affairs. It recognizes the evolving nature of corporate governiance as
well as the University’s complianee with senerally accepted corporate sovernance practices on a
regular basis, divectly and theough its Couneil committess and University Board of Management,
The vale of the Council {5 foensure conformiby to the overall Uhpversity strategic divection througzh
policy-making #s well as performance review by instituting accountability and appropriate
monitoring and supervision. The Council is also responsible for the maintenanee of Internal control
systerms and thelr continued veview, for their effectiveness. The internal contrals are designed fo
both safeguard the University’s assets while ensuring the reliability and credibility of financial
information.

The University Management Board, comprising, the Vice Chancellor, Deputy Vice Chancellors,
Registrars, Chief Finance Officer and Legal Otficer meets rezularly to consider stratezic issues of
ppertional importance to' the University, Below are the key features of the existing corporate
governance practices within Machakos University which are reviewed and improved on a regular
basis: -

1. UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

Machakos University Couneil was sppointed on 4@ November, 2020 and inaugurgted on 185
December, 2020, for a three-year tenure until 30 Novernber 2023, It consists of the Chatrimin and
six members, wha have béen appointed in accordamce with the Universities Act (Z012). It is &
requitement by law that the full University Council meets at least four times a Financial Year. The
Coungil is responsible for zulding the divection of the University through the establishoment of
palicies, steategic plan and approval of satutory reports and budgets. Through the various
Conimiftees, the Council monitors the implementation of strategies and policies by University
Management
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CORFORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTIMNUED)

The Council is actively involved in the affairs of the University and brings strong independent
judgmentt on its deliberations and discussions. The University Council memtbers have diverse skills
tnd wide range of knowledze that is beneficial in providing stratesic divection, formulation of
objectives and decision making, Since its mauguration on 184 December 2020, the Council hasbeen
holdings Council and Council Committees’ meetings in line with approved Council Almanac and as
stipulated by the Mwongozo Code of Governance, Dul'].‘l!lg the reporting period, the Council did not
[ive i substantive chair. However, the Council continued to operste in ling with Mwangozo Code of
Governance. The Liniversity Councl held the following Full Council mestings during the 2021/2022
Financial Year:

Tubil 2: FULL COUNCIL MEETINGS al iy
Name | Deslgnation No. of Meetings | Meetings attended
Mr. Richard Mafivn h1depenr.ieni Member 4 4
D E1.ppnra]:| Mutea® Independent Member 4 4
_r:ri._ Margare: Makumi Independent Member 4 4
Mr. Pﬂtl:iLI: Abeﬂe Independont Member 4 4.
ﬁMgge_r_ I"ﬂ-:nrﬂge Rep. CS, TNT 4 |
Dr. Joyee Ngure | Rep. P8 SDUE &R 1 4
| Prof. Tucy lrungu Secretary of Couneil F z L

Nofe: The Secretary of Council was represented by the Ag, Vice Chancellor, Prof. Peter Mwita in
o (2] meetings

COLRCIL CONMITTEES

To assist the Council in the discharzge of its responsibilities, Council committess have been
established. All the Council comumiitess meet at least four times a year. The committees ave as follows:
1. FINANCE, FLANNING AND DEVELOFMENT COMMITTEE

Membership
C1) My, Bichard Mativi - Chairmman
(2) Mi. Feter Njoroge - Representative - Cabinet Secretary, The National Treasury
(3) Dr. Joyce Ngure = Rep - FS, State Department of University Education and Research
(4) Dr. Margaret Makumi — Council Member
(5) Prof. Lucy Irungu (Vice-Chancellor) — Secretary
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Reopos faitieg

1. To recelve, consder and submit the proposed budgzet estimates from the various sections
for approval by the Couneil}

2, To control the banking and investment operafions of the Council and to make provision for
thie examination of all the billsand accounts and for the discharge of linbilities inenrred by
the University;

3. Tocontral all the expenditure of the University under approved annual estimates;

Ta receive and consider all requests for authorization of expenditiare more than the approved

annusl estinates angd maks vecommendations to the Coundil;

To consider and propose fees and other rates o the Councily

‘Toreport te the Council all matters related to finance und development;

To ensure that accurate records-are kept on the establistoments in the University;

T consider and recommend to the Councl the priority develepment projects and pecejve

reports, ard the recommendalions of Managemeni on. the progress of the phiysical

development of the University;

9, To report 1o the Council on the progress of physical infrastructure development of the

e

o=@

Liniversity;
10, To prepare University Development plans for an approved period and submit to the Council;
and
11.To exercise such other pawers as the Council may from time-to-time delegate to the
Comnittee, .
Tibie 3: FINANCE FLANNING ANE DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
(M a Ll_:lg,:_ﬂgmﬂm -Hq._g_f_ry_:ggmg: Mectings attended
My, Richard Mativu | Chairman 4 4
I!ij'-.:'ifigar:t E-.-leunu I I"L'!Emlie{_. * [ 4
Mr. Pefer Njoroge | Rep. €5, TNT 1 4 B
Dr. Joyece Naure Rep: PS5 SDLIE &R 4 B - Lo SeEe
| Fof. Lucy lungn Secretary of Couneil | 4 H \ 4

Note: The Secretary of Council wes tepresented by the Az, Vice Chancellor, Prof, Peter Mwita in
bwo (2} mectings

2. ACADEMIC AND RESEARCH COMMITTEE
Memberdhip
{1) Dr. Zipporah Mufea — Chairman

{2) Mr. Patrick Abelle -Independent Member
{3) Dr. Joyce Ngute — Rep, P3, State Department of University Education and Research
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CORPORATE GOVERMNANCE STATEMENT
{4} Mr. Peter Nioroge — Rep, Cabinet Secretary, The Nationsal Treasury
(5) Frof. Lucy Irungu (Vice-Chancellor) — Secresary

Responsibilities:
(1) To advise the Council on scadenlic programmes where the University has
competitive advantage;
(2} To receive and reconunend all policy decumients dealing with academic and research:
(3) To receive and recommend to the Council all Memorandum of Understanding/ Azreement
pertaining to collaboration and linlkages;
(4) To assst the University in establishing collaboration with industry and other stakehelders;
(3} To lobby for bursaries, research grants, scholarships .-em.:l munds for capacity building;
(6) To exeroise such other powers as the Council nmy from time-to-lime delegate fo the
Commiliee,
Table d: ACADEMIC AND RESEARCH COMMITTEE MEETINGS .
Name Designation No. of Meetings Meetings atended

T e TEETIES

D, E.lpp:rrnhMuten Chairman 4 4
Me. Patrick Abelle | Mirvibee 4 4
|‘Mr Foter Mjoroze | Rep. CS, INT 4 -

Dr. Joyee Naure Rep. F5, S»DL"['..!ER 4 4

Prof. Lucy irumgu secretary 4 2 3

Note: The he-:n:tu'j'ufﬂ:uum] was represented by the Az, Vice Eﬂmnn:l[m: Prof, Peter Mwit in
oz (2h meetings

3. HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Membership
(1} Dr. Margaret Makumi - Chairperson
(2} Mp. Richard Mativi - Coukeil Member
_{3) Dr. Jovce Maure — Rep - P5; State Department of University Education and Research
{43 Mr. Peter Njoroge - Bepresentative - Cabinet Secretary, The Natonal Treasury
{5) Frof. Lucy runzu (Vice-Chancellor) - Sacretary

Respongibilifies:
(1} To review and make pecommendations to the Council on Staff Terms and Conditions of
Service as and when necessary or when directed to do so by the Council from time to fime;
{2} Ta comsider proposals of Terms and Conditions of Service made by staff unions through the
Liniversity Managesient Baurd;

XXXV
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
(3} Ta receive and review, front time-to-tHme human resource policies and the code of conduct
aof the University employees;
{4) To plan for human resmires development in the Universit
(3} To recelve, consider and recommend to the Council staff recruitment and promotion criteria;
(6} To examine and recommend to the Councll staff pationalization and career structizres within

the University, and
{T¥Te excrcise such other powers as the Council may from time-to-time delegate to the
Conumnitiee.
Table 5: HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEF MEETINGS j
Name  Designation No.of Meefings | Moetings atiended
D, Margaret Makumii | Chadrman i 4
-Mr Ru:hard Iativu Member -i - 4_ T — ]
Dr JoyocNgure | Rep.PS,5DUERR | 4 - |
i P Noroge [ Rep.C5,NT W
Prof. Lucy lrungu Secretary 4 R e =
Note: ‘The Secretary of Council was represented by the A, Vice Chancellor, Prof. Peter Mwila in

twe (2) meetings
4, AUDT AND COMFLIANCE COMMITTEE

Membership

(1) M. Patrick Abelle - Chairman

(2} Dr. Zipporah Mutea - Council Member

(3 Dr. Jayce Nguve — Bep - PS, State Depertinent of University Education and Research

(4) Mr. Peter Njoroge — Rep. Cabinet Secretary, The National Treasury

{5) CPA John Nagre (Chief Luternal Auditor) - Secretary

{1} Ta- evaluate adequacy of management procedure with regard to issues relating to nisk
mranagement, control and governance;

(2} Ta reviewing and approve the audit charter where applicable and intersial sudit arhusl work
plans;

{3} To review internal and external audit findings and recommendations aned propose carrective
end preventive actions where necessary;

{4} To review the systems established to ensure sound public financisl management and internal
controls, as well as compliance with policies, laws, regulations, procedures, plans and ethics;

XAV
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

{3} To initiate special audits and oo investigations on any allegations, concerns and complaints
regarding corruption, lack of accountability and fransparency in consultation with the
Adcounting Officeér; nnd

{6) To exercise such other power's as the Council may from time-to- time delesate to the Committee

Tabie 6: AUPIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Mame | Designation No. of Meetings Meetings attended

M. Patr E‘nrrl-:k hhe]]e Chairiian 4 4
Dr. Zipporah Mutea | Meniber 4 4
Mr. Peter Mjoroge. | Rep. C5, I'[:-I'IT_ _ 4 7 4
Dr. Joyee Ngnre Rep. P8, SDUESR - 4 %
| CEA John Ngure Secretary 4 4 =

------ - — - —

Besides the four main Council conmmittess, there are ad-hoc commitiees which ava not pénﬁﬁnml :
But convened as per need o cover issues such as:

{8) Appeals commitiee ~ Human Resource,

(b} Graduation pnd Sealing commiltes - Academic

{c) Honovary degrees’ committes - Academic

{l} Appointments committee for grades 14 and 15 - Human Resource

e} Senior management sfaff disciplinary commities for grade 14 ind above - Humuin Resource

The following were ad-hoc meetings held during the year:
Table 7: AFFOINTMENTS COMMITTEE MEETINGS

| Mame Designation No. of | Meetings | Meetings
il Meetings | invited ooy
Dir. Zipparah Mutea Chairrisn i 1 1T a
Dr. Margaret Makumi | Member 171 1
Prof Lucy rungn | Secretary of Cowncil 1 1 Y
Table 8: STALY APFEALS COMMITTEE MEETING. I 2
Name Designation Mo of | Mectings
18 o Meetings | attended
| Chairman of Couneil 0 = ]
| Dr. Margaret Makami Chairman HR Committes 0 : P
 Prof. Luey Inumgu Secretary of Couneil 0 1 )
AXAV
— e e
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Tehle 8: GRADUATION AND SEALING COMAMITTER MEETING

‘Mame Designation Tn:n. of Meetings | Meetings attended

Mr Patrick Abelle Chaivman 1 '___ 1

e Zippra Mt | Member A ——
Dr. Joyce Ngure Rep. FS SDUEKR ' 3 [

Prof. Lw:.:.r Trungu Smm-:.-m Coungil F 1 ]

Note: The Secretary of Council was represented by the Az, Vice Chancellor, Prof. Peter Mwita in the
meating

2. Council Members' Bemunerafion

Siting allowanee for Council members, monthly honovariz and telephone allowance for the
Chairman of Council are zuided by Circular No, OP/CAE.9/2172A/LI1/45 dated 23 November,
2004. Payment of daily subsistence allowance of Kshs 18,200.00 is guided by Clrcular No.
OP/SCACS/21.ZVOLT (164) dated 28™ Aprdl, 2015, During the financial year endec 30 June,
2022, the umount spent on Council is outlined wider Note 10 {Council expenses) of the Financial

Shatermenks

3. Succession Flan
The dppointment of council members is the prevosative of fhe Cabinet Secretary, Ministey of
Edugation. Members have no control of the appointment and duration of service.

4. Board Charter
Machakes University Council has an appioved Board Charter. The Council is also guided by

Mwongoza Code of Governarce in s operations.

. Appeintment and removal of Council members
The appeintment of Council members is the prevezgative of the Caldnet Secretary, Ministry of

Edugation

6. Induction and Training

The Machakes University Council members during the reporiing period were inducted from 241 o
Friday 26 February 2021 (Last Financial Year).

xxavidi
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CORPORATE GOVEENANCE STATEMENT (CO

Name Desi@ﬂﬁm Days of Trainings Dm itterided

Dy Eappumhﬁlftﬂ | Ind-apemf@f Member Nl . i __ AT
Mr. Richard Mativi Inclependent Member 0 o

Dr. Matsgret Maksmi Independant Member 0 R =
M. Patrick Abelle Indepenclent Member | 8 .

| Mr. Peter Njoroge Rep, C5. TNT 1l 0

| Dr, Joyee Naure “Rep. F5, SDUE &R 0 0

Prof. Lucy Iungu Secretary of Council o =

7. Council and Council Members' Performance
The evaluation was conducted on 11" January, 2022 by the State Corporations Advisary Commission
(SCAC).

8. Conflict of Interest

In every Council meeting and ather business held by the University Council, Members declare
Conflict of Interest on matters in the agenda and register the same in the conflict of interest tegister
book.

9. Ethics and Conduct
Machakos University Council Members uphold integrity and the highest standavd of Ethics and
conduct while executing their mandate,

10, Governance Andit
The Council has put in place a combination of processes and strudtures to inform, direct, manasge

and monitor the activities of the University towards the achicvement of its objechves, There is an
independent Audit and Comphance Commitiae of Council fhat teports to the Council on & regular
basis. The committee plays a key role in assisting the Council fo fulfill its oversizht responsibilities in
areas such as financial reporting, internal control systemns, risk mapggement systems and the intermal
and external audit functions.

The University has internal audit unit headed by the chief internal auditor who report directly
(functionally) to the Audit and Compliance Conunittes of Council.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

11. Internal Contrals

The University has implemented and maintaingd infernal controls desizgned to provide reasonable
assiraice 45 1o the integrity and reliability of the financial statements and to adequately siteguard
and maintain accountability of the University's assets, Such contrels are based on Law, Government
& University regulations, Policies and circulars and are implemented by trained personnel with
appropriste segregation of duties. The effectiveness of the system af internal controls is monitored
vegularvty through internal audit functions, staff performance appraisals, operational meetings and
fhee annual exdernal awdit,

12, Going Concern

The Umiversity Council confirms that Machakos University has adequate resources to comthmie
operations for the foreseenble future and therefore, the contimued use of going concern as a basis of
preparing the financial statements. Machakos University has experienced increasing student
popaidation and staff population. We continue le meet statutory renuttances and other financial

obligations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SECTION A: OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

A) REVENUE ANALYSIS:

During the 202172022 financial year, Government srants contributed to 65% of the tofal recurrent
revenues while tiition amd 165 velated incomes contributed to 26%. [ncome generating activitios and
resegrch contributed to 7% and 1% vespectively, Amortization zrantsin kind contributed to 1%, The
Lhversity mostly depended on grants from the government 1o execute ks operntions as shown in

Figtire 1,

SOVEr

Gowermment Grands % Research ard Donor Grants B CHA Granks

B Amcrized Grants in kind Tuithan & Other Redamnd Ingomes B 1LGA & Cther Incames

Figure I: Revenues fm-FY 2021./2022

There was a bit of improvemsant in government recurrent grants in 2021/2022 financial year

i

compared 10 2020/ 2021 Ananeial year. In addition, the tition and related income together with the
reventies from Income generating activities increased due o recovery from the effect of Covid-19
pandemic in the 202072021 and 2012/2020 financial years. However, research and donor grants

draopped in the 202172022 financial vear as shown in figure 2.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSES (CONTINUED

Comparison of Revenue between 2021/2022 and
2020/2021

K1, D00 LR

400 00,000

TR0, D

nits Tuition & Ot
feelated Income=s Incomes

Figure Z: Comparison of fncome between 202 12027 and 2020/ 2057

The University appreciates the sovernment for increasing the recurrent grants (capitation) from
727.97 million in the 2017/2018 financial year to 998.56 million in the 2021/ 2022 financial year.

This has ensured financial siability in meeting the institution’s expenditure especially the payroll

costs A5 shown in fizlre 3.
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MANAGEMENT DISCITSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Trend analysis - Government Grants = !
9o 362,990

140 95,260,930 £ |
EBAD,524 574 |

—FATOF5.0E2

i

201713018 J01E 08D 20182000 033031 02153027 ‘
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. i

Fgire 5; Trend analysis - Governmen! Grants

The University experienced a decrease in research grants from 12,6 million in FY 2017/2018 o
118 million in FY 2018/2019. The grants increased to 25.0 million in 2019/2020 finaneial vear
but later reduced to 19.5 million and [2 3 million inthe 2020/ 2021 and 20212022 financial years
respectively as shown in figure 4.

Trend analysis - Research and Donor Grants

18,562,711

12,E25,175

017 /2008 Rl ERE L] 2045 2020 HI207 AL 02172022

Figrre & Trend analysis - Roseanch and Donor Grants

Tuition and other related incomes increased from 305.0 million to 364.9 million in 2018/2019

financial year. This increased tuition fees were mainly because of the re-introduction of TVET

programmes and the increased number of degree stiudents, The tuition incomes later reduced to

324 .9 million in 2019/ 2020 and 22 1.3 million in financlal year 202042021 due 1o the effects of
xliii

@ [SOHONTZ0TS Cetified .o daineeng Medaity i Trangoraring Tndunm aed Eevn et




Macthaboy Enfvirsiy
Ligran e Meprarts ol Fimaaebol sateme s for the pear eniled Supe 39, 2022
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

COVIR- 19 panderiic which adversaly affected the university operations by sispending the pliysical
lectores up to around May 2021, During the FY2021/2022 the tilion incomes inereased to 404
tillion after physical leciures resumed as shown in figure B,

3

i ~ Trend analysis - Tuition & Other Related Incomes

364,937,509 04,208,083

1!1,!119&]‘ :

i

Figure 5: Thend analysis - Twiffon & Other Related Incomes

2007 2008 20013/20E9 20192000 G fand BRLAOEE

Revenues from income generating activities grew from T4.8 million in FY Z017/2018 o 1527
million (1 FY 201872019, The increased revenue was iainly atttibuled (o the university hotel wihich
had more conferences velating o the national population census in the yeanr 2019, The revenue later
fell to 100 million in FY 2019/2020 and 95.3 milllon in the FY 2020/2021 due to the effects of
COVID-19 which adversely affected the operations of the university. The incomes slightly increased
in FY2021/2022 to 101.8 million due te resumption of hotel operations as shown in figure 6.

Trend analysis - LG.A. & Other Incomes

T

100,045,248

201F K18 18/ H010 2492020 20202021 201 farad

Fgure 60 Trend analysis - LGA. & Otfer fncomes
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Surplas for the year dropped from 38.7 million in 201 7/2018 to 33.9 million in 2018/2019,
Thee surpius grew to94.5 million in 20193/2020 hot the university experienced. a deficit of 55.5
million in 202072021 financial year die to reduced revenues from income generating actvities and
increased deprecintion expenses. I FY 2021 /2022, the university zained a surplus of 51 million as

shown in fizure 7.

Trend analysis - Surplus / Deficit

1401, D000

4,504,020

1,264,152

Ba, v 009

110, G000, DO}

Figure 7! Trend analysis « Supiis 7 Deficit

B) EXFENDITURE AMALYSIS

During the Z021/2022 finnncial year, employment costs took the highest amount of recorrent
expenditure with 73%.  Administrative and operations expenses formed 11% with the academic
expenses taking 6% of the total recurrent expenses. The council expenses were 1% of the tofal
recurtent expendiure while repairs and maintenance, deprediation, increase in provision for
doubtful debts, and other expenses vepresented 0.6%, 5%, 0.4% and 3% respectively us shown in

fizure 8.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Total Expenses for FY 2021/2022

Other

Ersboyment Costs

Figrire & Total Expenses for Y 2021 /2088

The finarcial year hacl & slight increase in employment costs; increasing by 7 millien due to the
ansital Basic salary increments aed the few academic staff that were promoted. Adminsstative and
operation expenses incregsed by Z0-million while academic expenses increased by 345 million-due
to increased academic activities after resumpbion of physical lectures that had been suspended during
the global effect or Covid-19 pandemic. Coungil expenses increased by 5 million considering that

shydeal council meefinzgs pesmumed during the year, Other expenszes increased by 11,5 mullion due
JALLY = I d,

to increased hotel operations during the financial year asshown in tigure 3,
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MANAGEMENT DISCLISSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Clmparison of expenses between 2021/2022 and
1,000.000.000 2020/2021

50 000,000
A0, 000,000

SO0 00

Flgure 8 Comparison of expenses hepween 2027722022 and 2070/,202 1

Employment costs lve continued to increase from 897,53 million in 201 7/2018 40 1. 105 pillion in
the 2019/ 2020 financial year then reduced to Ksh, 1.055 hillion in FYZ021 /2022, The amployments
costs in 2019/ 2020 included 2017-2021 CBA arvears Tor 3 vears of Kshs. 96.3 million as shown in
fiztire 10,
i Trend analysis - Employment Costs

1,055,222,318

97,312,113

]

ki 200002031 A0E12022
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Figure for Trerd analysis - Dpploprment Costs
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Couneil expensés increased from 9.1 million in 201772018 to 1 1.3 miflion in 2019/2020 but luter

reduced to 7.5 million in the 2020/2021 financial year due o reduced cost of meetings
attributed to virtual mestings because of the effects of the COVID-19. The expenses incréased in

FYZ021/2022 to 12.5 million as shown in figure 11,

fud Trend analysis - Council Expenses

11,317,002

12,81

7,544,989

2017/ 2018 20182018 2016 32080 202042021 R s

Acadentic expenses increased from 81 million In 2017/2018 to 90.9 million i Z018/2019 bat later
recuced in 20192020 and 2020/2021 financial years due to the effects of COVID- 12 which forced

the university toclose physical lectuses From March 2020 to May 2021, After resumption of physical
lectures, the expanzes increased in FY2021/2022 to 84,6 mullion as shown in Agure 12

Trend analysis - Academic Expenses

40,909,070

AS,831,7T1 BAAESOM i

2 TA200E IP18/2010 EARN P S B ST/ 208E

Feure 127 Trend n-_.-m{'r".ul-r = Acadernic Expenses
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Aclministration and operation expenses have been ineveasing from 116 millionin 2017/2018 to 162
million in 2027/2022 financial year. The costs had dropped from 159.6 million in FY2018/2019
lo 138.2 million and 142.0 million in 201972020 and 2020/ 2021 respectively dua to effects of
COVID-19 on some expendifure fines as shown in figure 13,

Trend analysis - Administration & Operations
Expenses

TaETT AN PH0LE010

LI6,028.5%6

TORT/ 008 20EE/ 2000 20184 2020 202052021 ol e

Fignee 13 Trend .Ei':'.ﬂ{,l-;*i'.l-'i'_ Administration & Cherafions Expenaes

Repairs and maintenance costs have been decreasing from 16 million in 2018/2019 10 8.9 million
i 202042021 financial year but increased i FYZ0Z1/2022 to 11,8 millien as shown in figure 14,

: ; . il
Trend analysis - Repairs & Maintenance Expenses I!

16,088 504

1567841

15, THEDB0

AA23 hag
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Agure 13 Trend analysls - Kepains & Maintenane Fpenses
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
Other expenses increased to 52.4 million in 2018/ 2019 because of the increased operations in the
University Hotel but fater drepped in 20192020 pnd 2020/2021 financial years due to the effeces
of COVID-T9 which forced the hotel to close for a couple of months, The expenses increased in
FY2021/2022 o 42 millien due to resumpton of hotel operations as shown in figare 15.

E:: Trend analysis - Other Expenses "1

3438, 5T

42,191,008

L e T AR

2017 S 20182010 21042020 A EDEL 2OUT R0

Figure 15 Trend analysis - Other Expenses

Depreciation expenses have been increasing over the years because of the increasing number of fixec
assets of the University but later reduced in the FY2021/202ZZ due to fully depreciated assets as
shown in figure 16,

Trend analysis - Depreciation Expenses
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

C) STATEMENT OF THE FINANCIAL POSTITON

The fixed assets of the University dropped from 2,86 billion in 2020/2021 financial year o 2.83
billion in the 2021/2022 financial year. The decrease in the asset base of the university is sttributed
Lo the continued depreciation of assets which is mete than the additional sssets acquired ducing the
year as shown in figure 17,

Non Current Assets

IOF1-1022

Fignre 17 Nop-Current Assels

The University closed the financial year with-current agsets-of Kihe 5958 million which are abls to
cater for the curvent labilities of Kshs, 375.9 millien. This implies that the liguidity of the University
is favourable as at the end of the 202172022 financial year as shown in figure 18,

Current Assets \/s Current liabilities

Cur s
i

CLIERENT ASSETS M Cutrerl Anbalitios

fgure 18: Cutvent Assefs Vs Cirrent Babilifics
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND AMALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The University has increased ifs fixed asset base from Z.37 billion in 20172018 to 2.86 billion in
2020/2021 financial year but dropped to 2.83 in FY2021/2022 as shown in figure 19.

2aTr2018 20182018 2OV 2020 20202020 2y /e

L

Figire 19: Teead analysis - Froperty, Plant & Equipment

Trade and other receivables increased from 1422 milion 20172018 o 271.9 million in
20140/ 2020 but latet dropped to 1706 million in 2020/2021. In Z019/20Z0 there were CBA grants
receivable of Kshs. 86,3 million. In FY2021/2022 the receivables further dropped to Kshs, 169.3

milllion 45 shown in figure 20,
Trend analysis - Trade and other Receivables

971,812 536

170,654,706 |
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Figure 20: Trend analysis - Trade and other Recejvables
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CO

Cash and bank balances increased from X8h. 9546 mitlion to KSh, 281,86 million in 201872019 but
later dropped in 201972020 and 2020/2021. In 2018/2019, the University received development
grants of 96 million that remigined in the bank account as ab the close of the Hivinctal yéar. In
FY2021/2022 the cash and bank balances increased to Kshs, 3968 million as shown in figure 21
due to unpaid staff deductions and suppliers by 300 June.

Trend analysis - Cash & Bank balances T

H56.774,3

281,562,974

______

&E.-uu,ss’/
017018 201ES3010 A O R BT L il P8 T

Feiire 81 Trend milvas - Chih R ok Bl

Cuttent sssets had been increasing from 201 7/2015 to 201972020 but dropped in the 2020/2021

financial year because of the reduced receivables and; cash and bank balances. The current asseis
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Trend analysis - Current Assets
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249,685, 554
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The University has experiencec geowth in its net assets (Reserves) from Z.43 billion in 2017/2018
o 304 billiog in Z0Z1/2022. The development grants received, surplusés and the donations
veceived over that pericd have all contributed to this growth as showit in figure 25.

i Trend analysis - Net Assets o
' B4 4G 1

2885 743888  ieaRAL
2,774,753,301

EAZ0TE1144

ETAEOTE EOT&SEO1E AopeCEoR0 20204 H3E 202142082

Figuiee 25: Trend analysis - Ner Assets
The cureent liabifities increased in 2018/2019'to 392.9 million but reduced in the Z019/2020 and
2020/2021 fituncial vears. The University closad the vear with outstanding staff dedictions and
suppliers hence increasing the labilities in FY2021/2022 to Kshs. 375.9 million as shown in figure
. Bt :
Trend analysis - Current liabilities

35E 919,125
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f}:’guz-a 24 Trend analysis - Curvent labilities
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
D) STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS AS AT 30™ JUNME 2022

The University closed the financial year with cash and cash equivalent of Eshs, 326.8 million
compared to the Kshs. 1873 million in the 2020/2021 financial year, The Universtty received
capitation at the end of the year and had unpaid staff deductions and suppliers kence the increase in

bank balances ds per figure 25

ash & Bank Balances

A5, 000 O]
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Fiewre 25 Cash & Bank Falances
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
E) STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
The University realized most of its budgeted revenues though the tuition and related incomes, and

rescavch zrants fell short of the budget by K5h, 36 millhon and 16 million respectively as per figure

Budget vs Actual revenues

50,000,000

Ivi

.a. TS0 S0 2005 Certified o0 ' Sameing Helghts in Trenaforming fedusicy arat Ecvinarmg




Machkas Dinbversie
Adtiminnl Kepoarty b Firmasind starimiens fe the poar gded Same F0, 2022

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
On average, lhe University spent less than what was budgetes] for on recurrent expenditures. The

Capital expendifires fell below the budget by 56 millon as per fizure 27 because the government

grants veceived were used to settle the pending bill on the consteuction of the ition block for the
previcis twa financial years:

Budget vs Actual Expenditure

Final Budpet m Actual on comparable hagis

e 27 Budger v Aciual Expenditire
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MANAGEMENT DISCLISSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTIMNUELD)

SECTION B: KEY PROJECTS AND INVESTMENT DECISIONS PLANNED AND IMPLEMENTED

Within the financial year ended 30 Tune 2022, the University has been implementing the
following projects in order of priority:

: _ i Financing
5/No Project Completion of H::t Remarks
= s = e ] S

On-going but behing

Tuition and Office Block T2 GOK | e

Funding of capital projects

Funding for the projects was based on expected development grants. However, the Government |
fungling policy was reviewed and release of funrds is only based on the projects listed in the Printed

estimates, The Govermment Poovity is also o fund ongoing projects before embarking on new ones.

The University received Kshs, 60,000,000 in the period which has been inadequate for continual
implementation of the ongoing tuition and office bleck construction. {
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND AMALYSIS (CONTIMNUED)

SECTION C

COMPLIANCE WITI STATUTORY REQUIEEMENTS

During the financial year the University camplied with all slatutory requirements and is nat exposed
to potettial Htigation issues or exposure (o contingent labilities,

SECTION D: MAJOR RISKS

DOFERATIONAL RISKS

This is loss resulting from inadeqguate or failed pmdurea systems or policies. Some of the risks in
the Daiversiby inclide:
1} ERP System Failupe

2} Failure by customers to pay for services offered

) Some students fail to pay thaiy full fees

4} Some debrors from non-tuition activities delay paying for services rendered
Risk Mitigation Stratogies

¥ Resular back-upof infermation

21 Enhancing debt collection measiies

J) Enforcement af the fees payment policy

4) Enforcement of the 1D0% payment for the Hotel services
MAREKET RISES

These are lasses due to factors that affect the overall performance of the market, Some of the risks in
the University include:
1) Mot attracting meany module-two students due to the competition from other univarsifies and
colleses,
2) Inaldlity fo attract and retain qualified lecturers due to competition and financial constraints.
3) Competition from other universities vegarding the courses being oifered.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUEDY)

1} Targeted marketing of academic programmes and the University
2} Enhance the diversity and qualify of the Undversity programmes
3) Create a conducive working environment

4] Offering market-driven courses which are highly marketable in the industry by enhancing
collaborations between Machakos Tniversity and different campanies.

CAFTTAL RISKS

The University is exposad to the possibility that an entity may lose money from an investinent of
capital. Some of the risksin the University include:

1) Undesperformance of income generating units/activities
2} Damage to University infrastruchure
3) Peor workmanship by the contractors

Risk Mitigation Strategies
1) Inject seed capital ane commercialization of the products,
27 Insure University assets,
3¢ Procurement of qualified contiactors and professional monitoring of projects.

LIQUIDITY RISK

This iz the inability to meet financial demands. Some of the risks include:
1) FHigh cash demand
2) Failore to honor contractual cbligations due 1o budget cuts,

Risk Mitization strategics: I

1) Fraper planning
2). Erihanced government capitation and resource mobilization shrategies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING
Increasing envirommental concerns, stringent rules and regulations combined with public
awarcness, have changed the outlook of business around the world today. By planning and
implementing appropiate steategles and functions like green processes and energy conservations,
institutions and businesses can play an imporiant rele in achieving sustainability.

[iriversity Tree Plamiing exercrse taf wair dane o 12 Decermber S021.

Machakos University's overall manclate 18 fo Teach, Train, conduct Rescarch, nunoviate, and
Collaborate, ‘senerdte new krowledse and provide Community Service o contribite fo
enviromnental sustamability. This mandate forms the basis of the varfons University policy,
operational mad administvative instruments. For instance; the Umversity’s previous and current
stratesic plafis, the development of new programmies and feview of the existing ones aimed at having
in place market driven prozrammes, developed and adopted policies, the University’s Service Charter
and the review of the University's Statutes ave all premisad on this purpose. Further, the University
pontinnes to pursue policies, sirategies and interventions that promotes envirommental and
sustainability reporting &g Mzhlghted balow.

L Sustinability strategy and profile
A sstainable strategy translates into long term success. Those benefits are not simply economic but
benefit envivonment, local communily and overall socicty. In addition to driving social and
envirorumental chanse, sustainability initiatives can contribute to an institution’s overall success,

Sustainability steategy basically has implications on human, social, economic and environmental

dimerstans.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REFORTING (CONTINUED)

The overall strategies of the company o improve business efficiency must include complete
envitonmental obligations and energy consumption guidelines. Environmental stewnardship and
erergy conservation drive shorld be followed within the company's supply chain acrass the globe,
stratezies which support cost recduction, increase operating and energy efficlency, lower mir, water
and seil pollution, save natuzal resources arve the most effective steategies of any company, Companies
introduce inpovative methods o improve Informmtion and technology operations to enhance the
performance, without mereasing the energy consumption.

The Sustainable Hevelcnr.-menl Goals (8DGs), also known as the Global Goals, were adapted by tie
United Nations it ZO15 as o universal call to action to end poverty, protect the planet, and ensue
that by 2030 all people enjoy peace and prospesty. The 17 SDGs are infegrated in such a way that
action inone area will affect cutcomes in others, and that development must balance social, sconomic
and envirenmental sustainability. Quite a number 8DGs fouches on environmental sustainability,
These include SDG 3 (good health and well-being), §DG & {clean water and sanitation), SDG 7
(atfordable and clean energy), SDG 11 (sustainable cities and communities; SDG 12 (responsible
consumplion and preduction), SDG 13 {cimate change) and SDG 17 (partnerships for goals), These
goals are anthored or reflected in Kenya's wision 2030 (The Sochal Strategy) and the current
govermments Big-Four Agenda.

Ministry of Environment and Nationsl Environmental Management Authority have put in place
mechanisms fowards actualizing and moniforing the snvironmental sustainability soals and
programimes in Kenya, Kenya'’s Green Econamy Strategy and Implementation Flan 2016 = 2050,
points as the main énvironmental thematic areas for focus as Premote sustainable infrastruchire,

building resilience, Sustainable Natural Resource Manzagement; Fromoting resonrce efficiency, Social
Inclusion and sustainable livelihoods. The drafting of Machakos University Workplace.

Environmental policy and other programines such as tree planting and stakeholder/community
ipvalverment has quite been informed by this plan.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING (CONTINUED}

i, FErvirenmental performance

Machakos Upnivepsity  has integrated her epvirottimental and  sustainalbility steatesy into the
University’s day-to-day operafions by pursiing deliberate stéps to consetve, protect, and iniprove the
supply and quality of natural resources and environmental media such s energy and water and
aligning and integrating programs fo sid achieve a§ pEny posibive outcomes as possible in
environmental, economic; and social systems, The reporting matrix {table 11 below) with ragard to
fiachakos University performance on enviconmental sustainability indicators has been customized
from the template/format provided by National Environment Management Authority (NEMA). some
aof the notable realizations include MEsU warkplace environmer Anagement policy which isin

draft form and iz expectad tobe presented in the Universin: Senate, tree planting exercises by stalf
and students, initubives on enersy savings and waste manazement,

- “ -
g R R 5 : .
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Machakos Dniversity Tree Planting exarcise lecd by te Divecior fri-cltarse of Research
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REFORTING (CONTINUED)

Tiatre 11: Machakos Cniversity Environmenial and Sustainability Reposiing FY 20272025

Area of focus Target/Activity | Indicator || Achieve | Variance | Comment, challenzes
memnt
statis
Envirorument, Crevelopiment of | Workplace
Health and an Environment, | Environment, TO% -30% Draft policy in place to
Snfaty Healih and Health and Safety be  iabled in  the
Folicy at the Sately Palicy University Council. To
workplace Folicy be corrected and ve-
presented for approval
Weste Install waste Gegraaiied bins in These are not utilized
management bins place 1080% effechvely:
| initiatives and inuse There: §s need o
sensitize  stakeholders
on the sme
Climate change | -Installation of - Low energy - Rain water
adaptation and: | low énergy CORSIImM pion 100 harvasting,
mikigation consumption | devices in place underground fanks
initiatives clevices (lights) (lights) (AL}
-Installation of | -Rain water - Use af reinwater for
CRin wiaker harvesting cleaning and watering
harvesting structures in place
struchares - Alternative
-Installationof | sourees of
alternsfive green enerzy in
soUrCes
of green enerdy
Flanting trees Flant/ sapport 316 trees planted
trée planting within the 103.2% | 3.2% Target surpwissd
initiatives university because of donations
500 trees Tand af iree  seedlings
- recaived
Fromoting [dentify and The University did
ervironmental | engage atleast | not collaborate B0% No  fees were
protection and ane paciner in with partners bt externaily dosated.
conservabon tree planting planted
thiouzl initiative independently
partnerships
with
stakeholders :
Ixv
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING (CONTINUED)

ili. Employee welfare
The University has put in place various policies that guide the welfare of the stafl and amongst
them is the Human Resource Policies and Procedure Manual which has incorporated policies
that inform decisons on human resouree funotions,

The MR Policies and Frocedure Mantad has the following eighieen {18} policies:

Code af Conduct and Ethics
Staft Recrutfment

Stafl Performance Management
Staff Reward Management

Staff Training and Developiment
staff Prommotion

Leave Management

Staff Insurance

Staff Safety and Health

10, Staff Sccial Welfare

1 1. Successlon Planning and Staff Retention
12, Staff Sexual Harassinent

I3, Gerneral Harassment

14, Disciplinary Folicy Frocedires
15, Staff Separation

16. Benevalence

17. Sabbatical Teave

18. Visiting Academic Staff

SRR Rl R S

Other Policies that take care of the welfare of the staff are MksU Gender Mainstreaning, and
the MicslT Disability Mainstreaming, Staff Welfarve Policy and Benevolent Fund Policies

Ixvi
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ENVIEONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REFORTING (CONTINUED)

During recruitment, gender and disability mainstreaming guidelines are taken inio
consideration as guidec by the Folicies and the Government circulars in a deliberate effort 1o
achieve the ultimate goal of gender equity and disability mainstreaming tn all arvess.

MksLl has put it mechanisms of ensuring that staff are motivated through staff development and
traiing. There is a Staff Traming and Development Policy in place and mitigating measures that
are derived from the performance aporaizsal process.

The policy on safety and compliance with Occupationial Safety and Health Act of 2007, (OSHA)
is doicilect in the HE Poliey Manual.

a. Responsible compelition practice

Procurament department often relies on a competifive bidding process to achieve better value
for money in its procurement activities, To enlance competing on the same platform the bidders
are issned with the same tender document which on submissHon is evalnated based on the
evaluntion criteria provided in the fender document.

Low prices and/or better products are desivable becanse they result in resources either being
saved or freed up for use on other goods and services. Procurement methods sich gz open tendar
vequires that the lowest evaluated bidder be awavded the tender. However, to avoid price under
cutting, the lowest bid has to be within prevailing market rate. After evaluation and award of
tender the winning bidder is issued with award notification latter and at the same tHme the other
hidders are debriefed on reasons they were not awarded the tender.

b. Responsible supply chain and supplisr relations

Coniracts are honored as per the confractual terms agreed between the suppliers and the
University, Payments ave also done as per the agreed timelines. Youth, Women and PWD's are
paid Within 30 days and as per the Government Circular, The University has ensured that
suppliers ave advized on the documents needed to process their payments in zoed time.

i Lnvii
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUTSTAINABILITY REPORTING (CONTINUED)

¢, Respongble mariceting and advertisgiment

The University has established o Corporate Aflairs, Public Relations and Marteting Directorate
that is respensible for marketing and advertisement of the University.

a, Product stewardship

The University through the School of Environmental Science and Natural Eesource Management
has contributed to the redicHon of the effects of environmental degradation through the
development of programmes to disseminate knowledge on envirorumental sustainability.

Corporate Social Responsibility/Community engagements
(a) Bursary and Sponsorship

During the FY ZOZI-Z022, the needy students received intermal facilitated bursaries,

sponsarship through Rattansi Scholarships and some stidents benefiled through the Chanceliors.

kitty.
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FEFOET OF THE UNIVERSITY COTIMCIIL

Machakos University Couneil submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year eitded june 30, 2022 which shows the state of Muchakos University affairs.

Frincipal activity

The principal activity of Machakos University is to provide scholarly education through
Training, Research and [nnovation: for ndustrisl and socio-economic tansformation of our
CONMMUNities,

Results

Theresults of Machakos Uiniversity for the year ended june 30, 2022 are set out on page 1 011
University Council Members

The members of the University Council who served during the year are shown.on page xi toxv.
Auditors

The Auditor General 1s responsible for the statutory audit of Machakos University in accordance
with the pravisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya, 2010 and section 7 of the Fublic
Audit Act, ne 24.0F 2015,

By Order of the University Council

Ixix
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STATEMENT OF UNIVERSITY COUMNCIL'S RESFONSIRILITIES

Pursuant to Section &1 (1) of the Pubdic Finance Management Act, 2012 and Sections 14 & 15
of the State Corporations Act, Machakos University Couneil is requived to prepare statements in

tof the University which give a true and fair view of the state of aifairs of the University
at the end of the financial period, and the operating results of the University for that period, The
University Council is required to ensive that the University mainfaing proper scootnting
recotds, which disclass, with ressenable accurdacy, the financial position of the University. The
Conneil is also responsible for safeguarding the assets af the University.

The Council is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Machakos University financial
stnfements, which give a trie and falr view of the state of affairs of the University for and as at
the end of the financial pericd ended on June 30, 2022, This responsbility inclides ()
maintaining adequate management arrangements and ensuring that these continue o be
effective throughout the reporting pariod; (i) maintaining proper sccounting records, wiich
dizclose with rensonable gecuracy at any fime the financial position of the University] (iii)
designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and Lair

wation of the finaneial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material
misstatenients, whether due to error or frand; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the University; (v)
gelecting and applying accounting policies; dand (vi) making accounling estimates that are
redsonable in cirgumstances.

The Council accepts responsibility for Machakos University financial stitements, which have
been prepared using appropriste accounting policies sipported by reazenable and prudent
judgments and estimates, and in conformity with International Public-Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSAS) and in the manner required by the FFM Act, 2012 and State Corporations Act
Cap 446. The Council is of the opinion that Machakes University Anancial stateitients give 4 trug
and fair view of the state of the University trangactions during the vear ended fune 50, 2022,
and.of its fingncial position as at that date. The Council further confirms the complefeness of the
accountng records maintained for the University, which have been relied upon im the
prepasation of the University financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of
internal financial control,

Mothing has come to the attention of the Council te indicate that the University will not remain
1 going concern for at least the next twelve menths from the date of this statement

Approval of the financial statements
The Machakos University financial statements were approved by the Council on 29" September,

2022 and signed on its behalt by

Chairman of Couneil
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL FLE. B0 3005400400

Enhanciing Acoamabrility NAIRCEL

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON MACHAKOS UNIVERSITY FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contants of my report which is in three paris:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are faily presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework, accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have
a direct effect on the financial statements

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which
considers compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices,
circulars, guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a
prudent, efficlient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure
Government achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the
intended purpose,

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide intemal
operations. This responds to the effectivenass of the governance structura, tha risk
management environment and the internal contrals, developed and implemented
by those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of
the entity.

An unmodified cpinion doas not necessarlly mean that an enfity has complied with all
relevant laws and regqulations, and that ils internal contrels, risk management and
governance systems are properdy designed and were working effectively in the
financial year under review

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibiliies of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution,
the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three
parts of the report, when read together constitute the repert of the Auditor-General,

REPORT ON THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Cpinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Machakos University set out
an pages 1 to 41, which compnse of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2022, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in
net assets, statement of cash fiows and statement of comparison of budget and actual

Report af the Audivor-General on Machakar Univessiey for the year eraed 20 Sare, 20022



amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of
the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015, | have obtained
all the information and explanabions which, to the best of my knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of the audit

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Machakos University as at 30 June, 2022, and of ifs financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended. in accordance with
international Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the
Fublic Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Universities Act. 2016.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted inaccordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions {I55Als). | am Independent of the Machakos University Management in
accordance with |133Al 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfiled other ethical
responsibilities in aceoerdance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requiraments applicable to perferming audits of financial statements in Kenya. |
believe that the audil evidence | have cblained is sufficient and appropriate o provide
a basis for my opinion.

Koy Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements, There were no key audit matters
to report in the viear under review.

Other Matter
Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final income
budget and actual on comparable basis of Kshs 1626759858 and
Kshs. 1,578 442 553 respectively, resulting to under-funding of Kshs. 48,317,305 or 3%
of the budgst Further, the statement reflects actual total expenditure of
Kshs.1,413,068,323 against approved budget of Kshs.1.626,753,858 resulting to
under-performance of Kshs.213,690,535 or 13% of the budget.

The underfunding and under-performance affected the planned activities and may
have impacted negatively on service delivery to the public,

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As reguired by Article 2296) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matiers descrnbed in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Usa of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that,
riothing else has come to my altention to cause me to believe that public resources
have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Repoet of e Awadltor-Gereral an Woeckatos Dndeeriiy for the pear ended 30 June, 2022
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Basis for Conclusion

1. Advance Payment to a Supplier without Security

The statement of financial position, and as disciosed in Note 15 to the financial
statements, reflects a property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs 2 858 606,166
as at 30 June, 2022, Inciuded in the balance is an amount of Kshs_16,638, 507 refating
to computers, which includes Kshs 2,790,889 paid to a firm on 10 November, 2021 in
advance for provision and maintenance of intermet infrastructure during the manths of
October to December, 2022. Examination of records revealed that the supplier was
paid In advance without provision of the requisite security bond. Further, the advance
payment was in excess of 20% of the inveice value contrary to the provisions of
Section 147(1) of Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 which provides
that an advance payment should be paid upon provision of an advance payment
security equivalent to the advance itself and that security shall be given by a reputable
bank or any authorized financial institution.

In addition, no explanation was provided on why the payment was made for works that
were to be execuled later. The University therefore risked losing funds through
advance payments to suppliers without security.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Delay in Completion of Tuition and Office Block

The University entered into a contract with a local company on 20 July, 2017 for
construction of fuition and office block at a contract sum of Kshs. 986,761,116 and 3
contract period of one hundred and fifty-six (156) weeks commencing on
20 July, 2017 to be completed on 20 July, 2020. The contract period was subsequantly
revised to two hundred and forty-four (244) weeks with a revised expected completion
date of 14 March, 2022 as per interim payment certificate No.20 of
23 December, 2021. Further review of documents revealed that the University had
paid the contractor and subconiraclors a total of Kshs 454, 736 835 for the total value
of works certified which included interest on delayed payments of Kshs.5,408,145.
Records provided for audit review indicated that the contract expired on
14 March, 2022 while the completion level was at 72%. A physical verification camried
out in December, 2022 revealed that there were no ongoing works on sita.

In the circumstances, the University did not obtain value for money from the project.
3. Irregular Payment of Allowances

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs 84,663,034 in
respect of academic expenses which, as disclosed in Nota 11 to the financial
statements, includes Kshs.5,438,620 relating to Commission for University Education
(CUE) out of which Kshs 555,300 was paid to fifty-three (53) officers as allowances
for atlending a Senate retreat at in Athi River between 26 and 27 May, 2022 The
allowances were irregular as the officers were being ferried between the University
and venue of the retreat every day This was contrary to the Salaries and
Remuneration Commission circular of 20 November, 2017, and Section 68(1) of the
Public Financial Managament Act, 2012 which prohibits use of public rasources in a
way that is lawful and authorized.

Report of the Andiior-Deneral on Mochakas University for the yead ended 30 Juwe, 2022
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4. Irregular Provision of Legal Services

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs 162 432,835 in
respect of administration and operations expensas which, as disclosed in Note 12 to
the financial statements, includes Kshs 5985 005 relating to legal expansas oul of
which Kshs. 2,409 666 was paid to a law firm for provision of legal servicas. However,
review of documents revealed that the University has been procuring legal services
from the same Company since inception in October, 2016 without approval the of the
Attorney General contrary to Section 17(1) of the Atlomey General Act of 2012 which
states that no Ministry or Department shall engage the services of a consultant to
render any legal services ralating to the functions of the Altorney General without the
approval of the Attormey General.

Further, Management did not provide a Service Level Agreameant between the law firm
and tha University as required by Saction 135(1) of the Public Procurement and Asset
Disposal Act, 2015.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the [aw.
§. Irregular Security Expenses

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.162 432,935 in
respect of adminisirative and operalions expansas which, as disclosed Note 12 to the
financial statements, includes Kshs.9,343 271 relating to securty expenses. Qut of
this amount, Kshs.2 916 883 was paid in cash to Kenya Police (Kshs. 1,886,883), Vice
Chancellor (Kshs.630,000) and Head of Security (Kshs.400,000). No satisfactory
explanation was provided on why the payments were made in cash to the individuals
instead of the Ministry of Interior and National Coordination.

In the circumstances, proper accountability of the funds and related taxes could not
be confirmed

6. Adherence to Natienal Coheslon and Integration Act Provisions

Review of human resource documents revealed that during the year under review, the
University had four hundred and eighty-two (482) employees out of which two hundred
and ninefy (220) or 0% of the workforce were from the one ethnic community. This is
contrary to Section 7(2) of the National Cohesion and Integration Act, 2008 which
stipulates that no public establishment shall have more than one third of its staff from
the same ethnic community.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

7. Non-Adherence to Fiscal Responsibility Principle on Personnel Emoluments

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.1,055,222.318 in
respect of employee costs as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements. The
amount represents 69% of the total revenue of Kshs. 1,531,420,332 This was contrary
to Regulation 26{1)(a)} of the Public Finance Management [National Government)
Regulaticns, 2015 which provides that total expenditure on staff costs of a public entity
should not exceed 35% of the total revenue of the entity.

Raport of the Awditor-General on Machakes Untversity for the year ended 30 Jung, 3071
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In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

8. Irregular Payments for Council Expenses

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs 12 510,404 in
respect of councl expenses which, as disclosed in Mote 10 to the financial statements,
includes Kehe. 1,266,194 paid as allowances to Council members while attending a
Council workshop in Naivasha, However, no documenis were provided to show that
the meeting was approved fo be held outside the University's registered offices as
required by Section B(1)}(c) of the State Corporations Act, 2012 Further review of
records available indicated that the University paid Kshs 508,250 to a service provider
for conferencing facilities yet the firm was not prequalified to provide the service during
the year under review.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law,
9. Non-Adherence to Human Resource Policies and Procedures

The statement of financial performance reflects employment costs  of
Kshs.1.055,222,318. Review of documents in support of the expenditure revealed the
following anomalies:

8.1 Woeak Staff Establishment Controls

Examination of personnel records indicated that during the year under review, the
University had four hundred and sighty-two (482) employees, However, the approved
staff establishment provided for audit review did not include the approved number of
staff per job group and department It was not therafore possible to confirm whather
the University was over or understaffed and whether recruitment and promotions were
in line with the staff establishment.

This was contrary to the provisions of Section A 15 of the Human Resource Pdlicies
and Procedures Manual for the Public Service, 2016 which requires that the functions
of Ministerial Human Resource Management Advisory Committees (MHRMAC) entail
making recommendations to the Authorized Officer regarding staff establishment and
complemeant controls.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law
8.2 Staff Serving in Acting Capacity for Periods Exceeding Six Months

Examination of payroll and human resources records revealed fifty-one (51) officers
had been holding various positions in acting capacity for periods exceeding six (6)
months, with some acting for more than two (2) years. Review of sample perzonal files
showed that some of the contracts for the acting positions had been renewed with
effect from January, 2023 an indicator that Management had no plans for recruitment
for the positions. This is contrary to Seclion 34(3) of the Public Service Commission
Act, 2017 which states that an Officer may be appointed in an acting capacity for a
period of at least thirty days but not exceeding a period of six months

Report of the duditor-General on Maghakas University for the year ended 30 Jure, 2022
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In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

9.3 lrregular Engagement of Casual Employees

Review of records in support of payments to casuals revealed instances where casual
employees were engaged continucusly for more than three (3) months contrary to
Section 37(1) of Emplayment Act, 2007 which provides that where a casual employee
(a) works for a period or a number of continuous working days which amount in the
aggregate to the equivalent of not less than one month; or (b) performs work which
cannot reasonably be expected to be complated within a penod, or number of working
days amounting in the aggregate to the equivalent of three months or more, the
contract of service of the casual employee shall be deemad to be one where wages
are paid monthly and Section 35(1){c) shall apply to that contract of service.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that
| comgly with ethical requirements and plan and perferm the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activites, financial transactions and Infermation reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities
that govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1){a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, | confirm that, nothing has come to my atlention to cause me
to believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not
effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAl 2315 and IS5Al 2330, The
standards require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether
effective processes and systems of internal control, nsk management and overall
govemnance were operating effectively, in all matenal respects. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusian

Responsibilities of Management and the University Council

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements n accordance with [ntermational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS) and for maintaining effective internal contro! as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal
misstaternent, wheather due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness

of internal contrel, risk management and govermnance.

In preparing the financial statemeants, Management is responsible for assessing the
University's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters

Repor! af the Asdtitor-General on Meckatos University for the year ended 30 June, 20237
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related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management iz aware of the intention lo terminate the University or to cease
operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015.

In addition to the responsibllity for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial fransactions and information reflected in the financial statements
are in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources
are applied in an effective way.

The University Council is responsible for overseeing the University's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk managemenl, and ensuring the adequacy and effectivenass of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
slatements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
efrof, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the
provisions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution, Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
IS5Als will always detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists
Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiuence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
are in compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(8) of the
Constitution and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the
Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the
effectivenass of intemal controls, risk management and governance processes and
systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act,
2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Canstitution.
My consideration of the internal controls would not necessarily discibse all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that

Repart of the Awalltor-Ceneral on Machatos Unbversity for the yeor ended 70 Jwne, 2022
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misstatements caused by eror or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation
to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, intermal control may not prevent or detect
migstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies and procedures may deteniorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with 155Als, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skeplicism throughout the audit | also:

» |centify and assess the neks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, dasign and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contral

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accountng policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Managemant.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the University's ability to sustain s services. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadeguate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the University to cease to sustain I1s services,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
inciuding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the University to express an opinion on the financial
statements

e Perform such ather procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.
| communicate with Management regarding, among cther matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies In internal contral that are identified during the audit.

Repart af the Andilor-Cemerad on Machakos University for the year endea 30 June, 2002
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| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, relatad safeguards.

CPA

AUDITOR-GENERAL

MNairobi

GBS

24 April, 2023

Report af the Awditor-Cleneral on Machakes University for the yvear ended 30 hme, 2022
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Anpual Reports pond Financlal saieinents for the year earded Fupe 30, 2022
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR SO JUNE 2022

REVENLIE Notes
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Govermment Grants Bia)
Research mnd Donor Grants S(k)
CBA Grants Sic)
Amortized Grants in kind 6
Revenne from exchange transactions

Tuition & Other Belated Incomes T
LA Oher [ncoanes a2
Total Eeverie

EXFENIMTURE

Employiment Costs 5
Council Expenses 10
Acadeinic Expetises 11
Administration & Operations Expenses 12
Repaurs & Maintenance Expenses 13
Other Expenses 14
Depreciation 18
Indrease in Provision for doubtiul debds  16(a)
Total Expenditure

Surphus / Deficit

The notes set out on pages 12 bo 39 form an integral peet of the Financial Statements

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 11 were signed o bphalf of the Universiby
Cotineil by:

‘ -
[ M
“CPA Teresia Mutunga Fmr%] Agalo Dr. Christopher G. Gakahu

ICPAE No. L2630
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Machikos Unfversity
Aririted Reprarss aud Flroneiad statements for the e coeled Taoe 30, 2032
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PﬂSII'I-DN AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

ASSETS Notes
NON-CIURRENT ASSETS

Fmpqrt;r,Piam & Equipment 15

CURRENT ASSETS

i

Stocks-Inventorics 17

Trade and other Receivablea

Exchange transactions 16(a)

MNorn-Exchange transactions 16(b)

Cash & Bank balances 18

Total Assets

Met Adsets :

Capital Reserve 19

Revenue Reserve 200a)

Deferred Moome 20kl

o bl |

Trade and other Payables 21

Total Net Assets and Liabilitics
The Financial Statements set out on pages 140 11 mﬂgm behali
Couneil by :

miﬁmm hm Tr. Christopher G. Gaks
: i : i

ICPAK No. |2C 2T

EF 150 50012005 Cetified ... Saaring Helghts i Thansforming Indistry and Eeanomy
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Muchakos Lilversine _ f
Awiieal Reports and Finmuralad statenents for five veor euded June 30, 2022
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Description

Balance as at Izt July 2020
Additional Capdiial

Donated Lguipment

Prior year Adjustments

Deficit for the year 202072021
Amartized for the year 2020/2021
Balahce as at 30th June 2021

Balance asat 1st July 2021

Additional Capital 19

Dreniated Equipment 15
Prior year Adjustsents 200a)
“Burplus for the year Z021/2022 20(a)

Amortized for the year 2021/2022 - 20(b)
PFalance as at 30th June 2022
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Machwkas University
Arvnid Reporrs aited Fluaneld staterniy for tee peer srnded Tune 30, 1022
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Motes
Bevenue from non-exchange iransaciions: 122 [4)
Revenue from exchange transactions ZZ (B)
PAYMENTS n
Emplovinent Costs 23 (g)
Council Expenses 23
Academic, Administrative and other Expenses 23 (c)
Net cash flows from operating activities 25
Furchase of Property, Flant & Equipment . 24
Met cash flows used in investing activities 24
Cash flows from Financing actvities
Developiment grants received 19

Met increase in cash & cash equivalents
Met cash & cash equivalents bt

Cash & Bank balances as at 50th June 18

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 11 were signed on
Couneil by

CPA Teresia Mutunga
ICPAE No. | 210

Date h{"’qhﬂ M?}iﬂ"ﬂ% Date %;“MME?-

L
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Machakos University is established by and
derives its authority and accountability from
The Universitics Act. The " University ia
wholly owned by the Government of Kenya
and iz domuciled o Kepnva., Machakos

Uiniversity’s principal actvity isto provide
scholarly education  through  Training,
Rescarch and Innovation for industrial and
seclo-economic  transformation of owr

conumnities.

2. STATEMENT OF COMFLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREFARATION — IFSAS 1

The (inancial statessents heovd been prepared
on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement at re-valoed amounts  of
pertain propecty. plant and equipment,
marketable:  securities amd  financial
Iﬁgmuul_-,nm at fair value, impaired assets ot
their estimated récoverable amounts and
actuarinlly determined ligbilities at ther
present value, The preparation of financial
statements . im conformity  with  the
International  Fublic  Sector  Accounting
Standards {IPRAS) dllows the use of estiniates
and  assomiptons.. b alsos requives
mardgsment o exercise judgement s the
process of applying Machakos University
aocotmting policies. The arears involving a
higher degree of judgement or compiexity,
or where assumptions and estumates are
significant to the financial statements, ave
disclosed in Note 4 {k) of these financial

Slatenent=,

The financial staternents have been prépared
and presented in Benva Shillings, wikich iz
the tunctional and reporting curvency of
Machakos University.

The financial statements have been prepaved
in accordance with the Public Financial
Maragement Act  (FFM), the  staie
gorporaticns Act, the Universities Act and
Intermational Fublic Sector Accounting
Standdavds (IPSAS). The accounting policies
adopted have been congstently applied to all
the years presented.
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5. ADOFTION OF NEW AND EEVISED STANDARDS

£ New standards and amended standards gind interpretation i fisue affective in the year ended
80 Jurie 2022

IPSASE deterred the application date of standards from 14 January 2022 owing to Covid 19, This
was cone to provide entilies with time to effectively apply the standards, The deferral was sst far
1= Janmary 2025

1. New and amended standards and inferprefaifons in {sse buf not yet effective in the year
antded 30 fune 2022 - )

e

IFSAS 41 Applicable: 1% January 2023:
Financial The ohjective of IPSAS 41 s to establish principles for the financial reporting of |
Imstruments | financlal assets and Labilities that will present relevant and oseful information o
users of fimancial statements for their assessment of the amounts, Hming and
urcettainty of an entity’s fulbure cash flows.

' TPSAS 41 provides users of financizl statements with more useful informaton than

IPSAS 20, by:

' = Applying a single classification and measurement made] for financial assets
that considers the characteristics of the aseet's cash flows and the chjective for |

which the asset is held;
« Applying A single forward-looking expected credit foss model thot iz !
applicable to all financial instruments subject to Impairinent testing; and
« Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedeing
arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops & strong link
betwean an entily’s sk manggement strategies and the accounting treatment
for insteuments held s part of the risk managenent strategy.
Machakos University does not have any financial investments in stocks, bonds; loans
and guarantees. The elements recognized i the university’s cash flows include the |
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Effective date and impact:

“cash and bank balances, receivables and payables. The standard will guide the
university to link the risk management sirategies with the accounting treatment for
trade veceivables and payables,

Social Benefits

" Amendments
o Other
IP5AS
resulting from
IPSAS 41,
Financial
Instrunments

: sentation of the informaton report ot o scheme.
|pr: il fo po d ab the pers Al

Applicable: 1* Jamuary 2028 |

| The abijective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful representativeness ‘l
and comparabdlity of the information that a teporting entity provides in its financial |

statements about social benefits. The informattion provided showld help nsers of the |

Aiarcial statements ancd general purpose financial Feports assess

{a} The natre of such social bencfits provided by the enfity;

{b) The key features of the operation of those social benefil schemes; and

{¢) The impact of such social benefits provided on the entity’s financial performance,

financial position and cash flows,

The University established a defined contributions benefits scheme by the name

Machakes University Betivemen! Pension Scheme, This amendmant will improve the

 Applicable: [t january 2023

a1 Amendments to IFSAS 5, to update the guldance velaled 1o the components of
barrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted wien IPSAS 41 was igsuecd.

B Aamendments o [FSAS 30, regarding illustrative cxamples on hedzging ancd
credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when [PSAS 4T Sz fssed.

) Amendiients 1o IFSAS 80, to update the guidance for sccouiting for
financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertenily antiitted when IPSAS
41 was issued.

4) Amendments o IPSAS 33, to updite the suidance on classifving financial
instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were
inadvertently omitted when IFSAS 41 was issuecl.

Machakos University does not lave any financial investiments in stocks, bowds, loans |
and suarantees. The elements recognized in the university’s cash flows include the :
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Standard | Effective date and impact
] ' cast and bank balances, receivables and payables, The standard will guide the
: university on treatment for trade receivables and pﬁ.}"ﬂlﬁllﬁs
- Other Appiicabla 17 January 20258 =
impravements | a  JAAS 22 Disclosure of Fnancial Infarmation about the General Government
| 1o 1FSAS Sector,
Amendntents to refer to the latest Syatem of Mational Accounts (SMA En::n:l?_,}l,
& PS8 39 Bmplopes Benefits
Mow deletes the térm composite social security benefits as it is no lonzger defined in
IFSAS. ‘
‘s IPSAS 2% Financial instuments: Recognition and Measurement
Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by
IPSAS 41 which is applicable from 19 January 2023,
Machakos University does not have any financial investments in stocks, bonds, loans
and guarantees, The elements recognized in the university's casit flows include the
cash and bank balances, receivalles and payebles. The standard will guide the
university on hreatment for trade mﬁlvﬂl::les and payables,
[PSAS 43 | Applicable I* January 2025 : AN

The stancarcd sets out the principles for the recognition, mieasurement, presentation,
and disclosure of leazes. The objective is fo ensure that lessees and lessors provide

relevant information in & manner that faithfully represents those transactions. Thiz
information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that

leases have on the financial position, financial performance and cashilows of an |
Entity. i

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present Information on |
right of use assets and lease Hakilities

Machakos University does not have any leased property hence the standaed will not
be refevant during the preparation of the financial statements

15
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Standard | Effective date and impack: L |
TPSAS 44; Applicable I¥ fanary 2025 ' ' |
Nom- Current | The Standard requires,

Ausets Held Assets that meet the criterin to be classified as held for sale o be measured at the |
for Sale and | lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the depreciation of siueh |
Discontimied | assets tacease and: |
Operations Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented separately |
in the statement of financial position and the results of discontinued operalions to be
presented separately in the statement of financial performance,

Machakos Umiversity does' not bold any non=current asssis for sale hemce the
standard will mot be relevant in preparation of the financial statements

11, Early adaption of standards

Meachakos University did not early - ad-nﬁt ary new ot arended standards in the financial year
2021/2022,
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue Becognition
()  Revenue from non-exchangze transactions-IPSAS 23

Dronations are recognized when received and the asset recognition criterin are met. Values for

grants and donations related o property, equipment and other assets ave estimated by the

Liniversity or as advisad by donors. Donations in kind of curvent nahiee ave vecognized in the
year received and categorized as inventories- while those of capital nature are provated in their
wseiul life in & systematic manner and categorived as deferred income in the financial statements-
in sccordance with IPSAS 25,

Transfers from government entities are measured at faic value and recoznized on obtaining the
agget if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that fhe economic benefits or service
potential related o the asset will flow to the university and can be measured veliably.

(i)  Revenue from exchange tramsactions-TFSAS 9

Fecs and ofher incomes arve recognized when earned during the financial year. Revenue from
the sale of goods is recognized when the significant visks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of revenue can
be measurad reliably and it iz probable that the economic benetits or service potental associnted
with the transaction will flow to e university.

b} Budsget Information-IFSAS 24

The Original Budget for FYZ021/2022 was approved by the University Council and later
rationalized with spproved budset from the National Assembly, Mational Treasiry and the
communicated printed estimates by the State Departiment of University Education and Research
(SDUER) on Z3M july Z0Z1. Subsequent revisions were made to the approved budget in
accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate anthoritiss,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The revisions are added to the original budget upon receiving the respective approvals in order
to conclade the final budget. Machakos Universily recorded budget revigion of Kshs. 79,969,359
on the 2021/2022 Budget following the approved supolementary estimates.

The Annusl Budget is prepared on accrual basis, that is, all planned costs and income are
presented in & single statement fo Getermine the nedds of the University. As a result of the
adoption of the accrual basis for Budgeting purpaoses, there are no basis, imimg or university
differences that woilld require reconciliztion between the actual comparable amounts and the
amounts presented as a sepacate additional financial statement in the statement of comparison
of budzet and actal amounts cxcept for fow tiems that are not budgeted for,

A statement to reconcile the actual ameunts in statement of comparison of budget and actual
amotnts and the actuals as per the statement of financisl performance has been prepared after

the notes explaining the material variances of the budgat.

c) Property, Flant and Equipment-IP3AS 17

All property, plant and eguipment are stated at cost less accumulnted depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is divectly attributable to the acquisitionof the
items, ‘When signiticant parts of property, plant and equipment are recquired to be replaced at
intervals, the umiversity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specitic wsetul lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Liketvise, when & major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrylng amcunt of
the plant and equipinent as a replaceinent it the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repaiy
and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred, Where an asset s
acquired in a nen-exchange teansaction for mil or nominal consideration the asset is initially
measured at its fair value.

Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis over the estimated wseful lives of flie assats.
The annual tates in nse are:

Land - 0%

Buildings - Z,5%

18
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MOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS [(Confinued)

Motor vehicles - 25%

Furniture & Equipment - 12.5%

Compatters - 33.53%

Library bocks - 5%

Looss Tools - 12.6%
Library books and Loose tools are accounted for under Praperty, Plant and Equipment a5 per the
IPSAR 17

d) Inventories-IFSAS 12
Inventory is measured at cost upon inital mecognition. After initinl recognition, inwvenlory is

mieasured at the lower of cost and net reabizable value. Howeever, to the extent that a class of
mventory 14 distributed or déployed al no chagge ot for s nominal chacge, that class of inveniory
is 'measured at the lower of cost and cirrent replacement cost. Met realizable value is the
estirnuited selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimpted costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or dishibulion, llwa_e;ﬁtm'i:s flve
recognlzed 45 an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary course
of operations of the university,

&) Nature and purpose of reserves
The university creates and maintains reserves in terms of spectfic vequirements. The resarves are
maintained to cater for assets replacement, settlement of bad and doubtful debts, and ary other

conbimgency.

) Changes in accounting policies and estimates — IPSAS 3

The university recognizes the effects of changes in accounting pelicy retrospectively. The effects
of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively; if refvospective application is
impractical.

£) Employee benefits-IPSAS 39
The Universty established a defined contributions benefits scheme by the name Machakos
University RBetivement Fension Scheme under the custodian of Machakos university pension
schieme, where employees’ confributions arvé channeled to, The fund {8 managed by Liberty
Pension Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

h) Related parties — IPSAS 2D

The university resards a velated parly 88 a person ov-an entity with the ability to exert control
individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the university, or vice versa.
Thiese parties offer managerial, advisory and vegulatory services. The Nabional Government,
Members of Council and the management tedm are regarded as related parties in preparation of
these financial stalenents, National Government transactions have been disclased under reveniue
from non- exchange transactions (Recurrent grants) and under capital reserves (Development
grants); Members of Conneil allowances and management team remuneration have been

disclosed under Administrative and Acadendc expenses in the statement of finangial
performance. The related parties” trangactions are summarized in tables {a), (B) and (2} below:

a) COUNCIL MEMBERS
2021/ EﬂEP.. I 2020/2021
Sitting Allawances 6_14 75,500 | 4,200,000
Milesze Allowances BRBAIT | 464 289
| Suhsistence Allowances 4 565,300 | 2 68,500
ﬁuﬂa_sjnd Telephone T L - L e
Lunch Allowances > G000
iCthers™ F 838801 000 435000 |
= AT 12,510,404 7,544,989
b} NATIONAL GOVERNMENT
Grants 2021/2022 202072021
Rﬂ:}umm Grants 995,362,930 966,260,920
CBA Grants K3
Dew]npm:ttt Girants 60,000,000 74030444
| 'I,EEE,'SEE,BM l,ﬂ-iﬂ,ﬂﬂl H-'H
£) MANAGEMENT TEAM
S . 2021/2022|  2020/2021 |
Total remuneration | TEZTTETE|  To,793551 |

20

ﬁ ESCE MO 22015 Certified oo e cons seavibr s s imreardng Fledgints i Transiommiag Dndiiey. ded Boonoiy




Mrcliufos Liniversiy
dlanen il Reparss ool Faanclol steiesrend for fhe joar ended Seoe 30, 2022
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conhiniued)

i} Cash and cash eguivalents - IFSAS 2
Cash and cash equivalents compris: cash on henel, M-Pesa, cash at bank, short-term deposits on
call and highly liquicd ivestments with an criginal maturity of three months or less, which are

readily convertible to kenown amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in

value.

1 Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative fizures for the previous period have been amended, or
reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

k) Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty — IPSAS 1

The preparation of Machakos University financial statements in conformity with IFSAS requires
management o make judzments, estinates and nssumptions that affect the reported amounts of
‘reventes, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitics, af the end
of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estitnates could
resull in onrtcomes that requive & material adjnstment to the carrying amodnt of the asset or
liahility affected in fature.

Estimates and sssumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation of uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the carrying
pmounts of assets anel liakilities within the text period, are described. The university based ks
assmmptions and estimates on patimeters available when the financial statements wene
prepared, However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may
change due o market changes of clicumstences arising bevond the control of Hie university,
such changes ave reflectsd in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140;

Useiul lives and residual values
The wsetul lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform
potential future use and value fram disposal:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The conditiot of the asset bazed on the assessment of experts emplayed by the university

- The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in fechnalogy and

protesses
- The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed

= Availablity of funding to replace the assel
- Changes in the market in relation to the asset.

Frovisions:

- Prowision for Doubtful debts policy

= A provigion of 50% of any uncaollected debt that is oufstanding for 5 years and above as
a doubtful debl is provided,

) The Accounts Receivables

The Accounts recelvables ave stated at their nominal value,
m) Accounts Fayables

The Accounts pavables are stated at their modiminal walue,

n} Deferred Income

Deferved income arises as a resilt of donation in kind of fiked aszets that are amortized annually
at s rate equivalant to the depreciation rate. All other relevant costs being fréjght, custam and
clearing charges are capitalized.

0) Capital Reserves

Capital reserves recognized in the fnancial statements comprises of developnrent grants from
the ministry and revaluations of property, plant and equipment
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

p} Subsequent cvents — IFSAS 14
There have been no events subsequent o the financial year end with a significant impact on the
financial statements for the financial vear ended 30 June, 2021,

q) Corporate Tax
Machakos University is exempted from piying corparate tax by the Income Tax Ack Cap 470 of
the laws of Kenya.

r)-Financial Risk Management

Machakos University's schivities expose the institution to a variety of financial visks inchuding
eredit and lguidity risks, effects of changes in forelgn curvency and changes in market prices.
The Hniversity's overall risk manggenent programme focuses on unpredictability ot changes in
the business environment and seels to minimize the potentinl adverse effect of such risks on its
performince by setting soceptible levels of risk, The university's financlal Hsk mansgement
encompasses the soruting and proactive oversight of & number of key elements of the University's
operations including Credit visk, Liguidity risk and market risk,

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers 1o (he risk thal a counter party will ‘default on its contractual oblizations
resulting in fnancial loss to the University, The University’s credit risk is primariby atoribatable
to its receivables, The amoants presented [0 the statement of financial pesition are net of
provision Jor doubtiul debts, estimated by the University’s management based on prior
experience and their assessmenl of fhe current economic environment. The management
provides 50% for doubiful debis for non-performing debls in every year io mitigate the financial
risks
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NOTES TCI' THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

| Performing (Below 5 = Non-Performing (3 Tatal
_years) years and above)

As at 30" June 2022 Fehe | Kshs Kshs
Student Fee arrears 77412911 B G167 | 142,604,584
Tmr;ie .E: Other debtors: BLS43826 | AQ0ZOBRET | -G1,364,563
_'I]J_'l!l = 129,256,837 74 ']"13_= 203,969,157

Az at 307 June 2021  Kshs Kshs Kshs
Stisdant Fee arrears 74,186, G2 52397475 | 126,584,101
Teade & Othevdeblars | 65.128,862 | 5392,156 | 70421018
“Total 139,315,489 57,689,631 | 197,005,120

(if) Liguidity risk munagement .

The University’s liabilities subject to financial risk are categorized as Sundry Trade Fayabiles,
Prepald fees and Staff Gratuity Fayable as shown in the table belaw:

G Performing | Mon-Performing | =
B (withina year) | (Overomeyear) | =~
Az at 30% June 2022 Kshs Kshs
| Sundry Tracle Payables 28,974,209 - 29 874,209
S Staff Gratuity Fayable 46,581 468 . 43,5:31 468
Plﬁ_@.uﬂ fees _ TO.086,038 | : 79,086,038
Total ISE-EHJ?IE o= =53 - 156,641,718
_As at 30" June 2021 — Kahes e Kl _ Kshs
Sundry Trade PetjﬁbIes 12825 —= 12,822,474
Stafl Gratuity Fayable - EE,& 58207 - __604588,257
Frepaid fees 67,082,082 | 4T, 0EZ082
Total = 149,562,812 141&,3&2,512

The an:ml}r ity has disclosed KShs 155.6 million being aounts -;:nwmi to Trade and other
pa.}‘ablcas__g.s_l_ indicated above. However, the University has iade ﬂl}d ather receivables amonnting
to Kshs 204 million which can offset the liabilites hence mitlgate the liquidity risks.

(i) Market risk

There has been no change to the University’s exposiive to market risks or the manner in which

it manages and measures the risk.
(iv)Capital Risk Manngement

The ohjective of the university’s capital visk management is to safeguard the Board's abilicy to

continue as a going concern. The university capital structure comprises of the following funds:
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
. () RECURRENT GRANTS (CAPTTATION)

‘State Department for University Education
stquanmmntfar I_Tmrer\ﬁtjgt Education
State Departtment for University Eda.u:amm ;
State Department for University Education

State Departiment for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education

‘State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Depariment for muvmrtﬁﬂucnhm
State Department for University Education

5.(b) RESEARCH GEANTS

Reseapch Grants
Denor Grants

5. (d) DEVELOFMENT GRANTS

State U-E:]:!ﬁ.‘t'ﬂ'ftﬂllt for Ulﬂv;rsi:i:j;'r Education
State Department for University Education
TOTAL DEVELOFMENT GRANTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Confinmed)

6. GRANTS IN KIND

Equipimment from Seeding Labs
(17,382,586°12.5%)

Luban Werkshop - Equipment
(18,978 782" 12.5%)

Litban Workshop - Compiiters:
(31,467,84433 3%) ;

Library books (1,157,681°5%)

Enginecring - Compuiters {(349.487"35.5%)
Fngineering - Equipment (100,830%12.5%)

(a) Donated Assets in the year 2016/2017 comprised of;
1. Equipment from Seeding Labs Ksh 17,382,586

MNOTE:

(b) Deonated Assets in the year Z020/2021 comprised of;
1. Equipment for Luban Workskop Kshs, 13,878,782
2, Computers for Luban Workshop Kshs, 51,467 844

ic) Donated Assets in the year 2021/2022 comprised of;
1. Library Books from various donors Kshs, 1,157,681
2. Computers for Engineering Workshop Kshs. 349 487
3. Bgquipiment for Engineering Workshop Kshs., 100,890
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7

VOTEHEAD
Activity fee
Acirission fee
Alumni fncome
Application fee
Atimchnient Fee
Boarding
Catering
Centre fees
Certification income
Computer: fe
Exnminatio
General damages
Graduation Fees _
lndustrial Atachment & Insarance
[CT Fee .
EMEC & EASHEE Exam Fee
Laboratory/ Warkshop fee
Library fee
Material development
Medical fee
Penalty fee
Quality Assurance fee
BRI Chesques Charges Income
Referral Eupplem:hlﬂry
Registration fee

Fe-Take Fea
Students Ldentity Cards
5t Itwuranm fee
i g
Teaching Practice fee
Thesis Examination
Tuition fee
TOTAL
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Mieleakon Universiy

Anutial Reporss med Firancial sateiments for fie peor erded fuie 30, .i'ti';ﬁ'
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. LG.A AND OTHER INCOMES
VOTEHEAL

Le Techmisch Restanrant
Procluction Unit -Food & Beverage
Procluction Unit - Physical Sclences
Froclaction Unit - Corporate Affairs
Production Unit - EADMA
Production Unit - TVET

Anction

Serminar

Hire of facilities

Rent

Managemen| fee

Miscellanaons Income

TOTAL

9. EMFLOYMENT COSTS

Basic salaries.

Houtze allowance
Pension & Gratiiby
MESF

Leave Allownnces
Commuter Allcwances
Fart-time lecturers
Acliunct Lectiirers
Locum Stafi’

Casual WagES

Bock & Research Allowances
Other allowances
CBA Arrenrs

TOTAL

10, COUMCIL EXFEMNSES
silting Allowances -
Mileage Allowanoes
Subsistence Allowances
Honoraria and Telephone
Lunch Allowances
Dthers
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 Aumeal Repiorts wied Fl'm-:ii'rfﬂ'ﬂfmﬂ.lr:ﬁr Hhe paarr eweled e 30, el
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)

11, ACADEMIC EXPENSES

VOTEHEAD
Acadentie Besearch Expenses
P;gﬂﬁ-‘rltﬂ-l‘ﬂl mrmﬁspmm,
Alumn.{ﬁgmm
' Astachment expenses

Boarding/ Accommaodation expenses
Catering expeses

CLUE expenses

Examinations expenses

Exhilitions & shows +

External examinations EXPENzEs
Ficld courses expenses.

Graduation Expenses

Industrial inkages

littovation ﬁmdqtpnnm

[nsutance {Sm-:iems} EApEnSes
Internal Research expenses

KUCCPS expenses

Medical (Students) expenses
Regulatory bodies Expense

Senate & Senate Comumittees expenses
- Spetts & Games '
Stucents Activities expenses
Students Bursary fund expense
_.ﬁhdmt! Wi ﬂlld}' expenses L
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o Muckakoy Uiiversin
Al Reports undd Finmrcdel stapenenrs for e yewr ended Juve 36, 2022
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cortfined)

12. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATIONS EXFENSES

VOTEHEAD
Advertisemeni expenses
Agsociation of Government Council expenses
Audit fees

Change in Inventorics
Cleaning & Sanitation
ﬂnnﬁr.re:ﬂ::as, workshops and Seminars Experim
Disaster & Pandemic prepareciness
Enntnmty']&!xp-:m:
Health cave services
ICT Services & Internet
Legal expenses
e
SCH

Marketing & Fublicity Expense
Nawsp?apa's & Magazines

ffice Consumables
PC S IEC'
Froperéy Insurance-
secliciiy Expenses
Staff Development
Staff Uniforins
Staff welfare expenses
Stationery Expeérses
Skratesic Flanning expenses
Subscriptions & Registration Fees
Telephone &
Travelling & An:mmmu:rdmmn EXPENSEs
University Committees Expenses
Vice chancellor Cominittees expenzes
Water & Conservancy
TOTAL
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Mircliakos Drdvesii
Arnnral Reporrs aied Frugncial sommanemnt o i vear erded Trne 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
15, REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE EXFEMSES

w

......

: Hm-:'--we,hic]es fuel & Maintenance
Flant & Equipment Maintenance
Repairs and Maititenange

TOTAL

14. OTHER EXFENSES
VOTEHEAD

Le Technisch Restaurant Expenses
Corporate social responsibility
Endlowment fumd

Production unit expenses

TOTAL

32
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Student Debiors
Trade Debtors
Qther Debtors

Frovision for Deubiful debts
(50%E4,691,672.50) &
(5001 0,020,627.05)

()
MNon-Exchangs Transactions

Outstanding Imprests
Staff welfare Achvinee

Tortal

17. INVENTORIES
STOCKS -INVENTORIES

Kitchen & Hospitality stoves inventory
Central Btores inventory

Academic gowmns inventory
Le-Technisch inventory

Maintenanes store invenioey

Health unit imvantory

Total

& 15090012015 Certified .o

) Muchikos University 3.
clumned Buparss FMHHWIM'F' e el eriedd Jne 20, 2022
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Mucliakos Univertify
Awminl Reports amd Finanetal siateinnits for i pear erm'a'i' Siome 3, 222
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Cash dn hand
Bank Account No.
Standard Chartered:
Standard Chartered Bank 0102016845602
Standard Chardered Bank 152016545602
MNaticnal Bank: :
Mational Bank of Kenya 2T0200T2409400
National Bank of Kenya Q1020078499401
National Baik of Kenya Q1020078499402
K.En:,rﬂ Commercial Bank 1157145064
Kenya Commercial Bank 1180326849
Kenya Commercial Bank (211488594
Kenya Commercial Bank 1211482167
Cooperative Bank of Kenya:
Co-gperative Bank of Kenyn  011Z9277651100
Wmuh 0G002TE6T4858
TOTAL i
A
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 Machakos Uitiversity
Airrerend Riporis aud Fimminednd stateniends for tre ponr eided Jane 70, 2022
MNOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL 5T i

13, CAFITAL RESERVE

Balance asat 30th June Z0Z1
Developiment Grants for the year: (MNote 5 (d)
Balance as at 30™ June 2022

20, (2} REVENUE RESERVE

Balance B/F
Prior year Adiustments
Surplus/Deficit for the year
Balance as at 30 June 2022
Motea:
Prior year Adjustments relatas to fees adjustments and costomer invoices adjustments and reversals

20, (b) DEFERRED INCOME

Equipment from Seeding Labs Bal b/
Lubusn Workshop ~ Equipment Bal b/f
Luban Workshop — Computers Bal b/t
Hbt:ﬂl‘}' hmkﬁ

Engineering - Coinpuicrs
Engineering - Equipment

Amottization for the vear (17 382 588 @12.5%)
Amortization for the year (15,978,782 f012.6%)
Amortization for the year (31,467,844 @ 35.3%)
Amortization for the year (1,157,681 & 5%)
Amortization for the vear (349,487 & 35.5%)
Amortization for the year (100,890 @ 12.5%)
Balance as at 50 June 2022
MOTE:
{a) Donated Assets in the year 2016/2017 comprised of;
1. Equipment frem Seeding Labs Ksh 17,382 586
(b} Donated Assets in the year 2020/2021 comprised of;
1. Equipment for Luban Workshop Kshs, 13,978 782
2. Computers for Lihan Warkshop Kshs, 31,467,844
(e} Donated Assels in the year 2021/2022 comprised of;
1. Library Books from vanious donors Kshs. 1,157,681
2. Computers for Engineering Workshop Kshs. 349,487
3. Equipment for Engineering Workshop Kshs, 100,820
7

'a |mq{m|:?ﬂ]5t‘#l‘tiﬁbﬂ dn b et PR ] .......,-.Ti.:mrr.u:g Fengs (T ramsforuriny fagusnny arg E._'r.».-h-_-.-.-r_p




Mirchakos Univeesity
Awnpsa! Reperets ared Flavorefal stoferiterds fion e it dn'dn'.l'.ﬁrm i, 3022
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21, TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Eecurrent Tracle Payables
delt fewy

Stndents’ payables

Students’ Prepaid fees

Refundable Caution fees

MLISA Membership & Emtﬂznphnm
Students Sponsorships Fund

i amen R
HEE

stalf decuctions payable

Part Time Claims owing

Staff Gratuity Payable

CEA Arrcars payable

23, CASH RECEIPTS

E::i Wmﬂiﬁu
non-exchange transactons

E_'l'm:_]gl; in Receivables from non-exchange

22, l]:} Exchange iransactions
Fevenue from exchange transactions
Change in and other Receivables

Change in Student payables
Frior year Adjustments

TOTAL RECEIFTS

I8
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Mieivukos University

Amrsil Repars e Fliinetal stetciendy for tle vear enaded Tyne 30, 2022
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23, CASH FAYMENTS

235. (a) Employment costs
Employment Costs:
Change in Payroll payables

23. (b} Counpcil expenses
Council Expenscs

23, (e} Academic, Administrative and
other exporses

Academic Expenses

Administration & Operations Expenges
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses
Other Expensas

Change in Inventorizs

Change in Trade pavables

TOTAL CASH FAYMENTS

24, CAPITAL CASH PAYMENTS

Purchase af Froperty, Flant & Equipment

hange in capital creditors

238, CASH GENERATED FROM QPERATIONS

surphis Deficit for the year

Adjusted for:

Depreciation

Men-cash grants recepvid

Working Capital adjustments

Change i inventory

Change in receivables

Prior Yepr Adjustiments

Charnge in Payables

Met Cashflow from operating activities

O 150 90012015 Certified - o——oooooo
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Mclpkex University
Aminral Roparts ared Filagnotal sfafemsents for the rear drindd Jiirie 30, 2022
AFFENDIX I: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent Liabifities

i The University anticipates ta inour an expenditure for legal services for fhe on-going undetermined
cotiet cases; There are uncertainties rezavding the Uriversiiy’s ltization isaues considering that the
court cases might be determined in favor or against the University.

41
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Muchakos Universiy

Anaval Heports oied Bt shercaiant for nhe veur cnded Juwe 380, 2022
AFFENDIX II: FROGRESS ON FOLLOW UFOF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issue raised by the externi] auditor, ind management comments

that were provided to the auditor. We have set dme frames within which we expect the isues
1o be resobved ns shown in the Eble below,

outslanding certificates to the
Development account ,

Reference no. | lssue/Observations from Management comments Sttuas: Time frame;
on the auditor (Resol (put & date
cxternal /ot when you
audit report Resolved) the issue
io be resolved)
MNSA Other Matter-Increased Management fo-explore more | In In the next & fo
(2016/2017) | deficit hence reduced opportunities o increases Progress | 7 years
Reveritie reserves. revenue and contral
Expendifiire.
I & Adoption of the Annual The term of the Tniversity Resolved | FYZ020/2021
(2019/2020) | Report by the University council lepsed on 14 August
Coteil 2Z0Z0. By the time the
finsncial satements were
submitted on 30 September
2020, the new council had
ok been appointed
o Trade and Other receivables | To clear off the outstanding Fegolved | 50 Jume 2021
(2019720200 | — [Infra-Universty Trade Dniviersity bills due to the
Recetvable Balance Universty hotel
i Stident Debtors — Accuracy, | To include details of stident | Resolved [ 201 fane 2022
(202072021 | Completenesss and numbers and invoice dates in
recoverdbiity of long tha gzed student debtors’
outstanding student debts schediles
Z. Trade Debtors — Accuracy, | To provide list of trade deltors | Resolved | 300 [une 2022 |
(Z020/2021) | validity and collectability of | to support the opaning
letg outstanding student balances
delns
& Intra-University Debis To offset intra-university Resolved | 30 [une 2022
(Z0Z0/20ZT) transactions from the debtors’
balance
4. Lnascounted for To refund the retention money | Kesolved | 30 Juneé 2022
(Z0Z20/20Z1) | Confractors’ Retention that was utilized to pay

et

Joyee J. Agalo
Ag Vice Chancellor

NS 150 H0L:2015 Certifled ovivvnnnverennse

. Christopher G. Gakahn
Chairman of Council
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Maclfrakos Enfversiyy
Annreal Reponts e Fimanoial sfatemeets for e poriod sivdod Faire 20, 122

AFPENDIX 1II: FROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE UNIVERSITY

& 150 9001:2013 Ceriied

SoaEing fieighs tn Trangforming Industne avd Eoanan

Projects
Projacts implemented by the University tunded by Development partners.
S/n | Project | Donor Feriod/ Donor | Separate donor Consolidated in
|o | Number duration commibm | reporting requived as | these financial |
ent per the donor statements :
| -~ JBEnL ARG e s TG, S
| L HGHEE - MAA MAA - - = |
Status of Projects completion
™| Froject | Tomlproject |  Total | Completion% |  Budget |  Actual | Sources
Cosl expended (o to date (2021/2022) | Z021/202Z2 af
date | furds
1. |Tuitionand | 1
; Office Block | 986,761,116 | 456,797,826 s G0L000.000 32109224 | GO K
| =
42




Meefurkes Tlrtversiiy
Avnraad Repaets arh Flnanclal sieremiems for thee porind sudden Suire T8, 3022
AFPPENDIX IV: INTER- ENTITY TRANSFERS

@

MACHAKOS UNIVERSITY
_ OFFICE OF THE VICE-CHANCELLOR.
Telophmi: 254 = (04735 34 TR0 7TI3 BI5ES PO Box 13520100
E-mails  sviieksnanks Mackakos
Websile;  wonwmika ae ks KEMYA
Char Bef: ksl MOEST 20/VOL, X

Machalkos University wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed from the State Department for
University Education incd Research as at S0° June 2022 as indicated in the table below.

Confirmation of smounts received by Machakos University as at 30 fune 2022

=T RS o Amounts Disbursed by State Department for
University Education and Rescarch as at 30™ June
e 2022 g e e |
| Fonieed Total Amount Diifere
| Rec ¢ | Dyl i (D) = (A+B+C) | Received by :n{fj {FE%I
Number Disbursed (A) | nt(B)Y terial !'m. |
M | 30% June 2022
3/8/2021 | BZ 955714 L 82963714 | 82968714 | -
12/8/2021 - | 30,000,000 50,000,000 30,000,000 -
1/9/ 2021 | BZ953714 i 82953714 B2,953.714 7
29/9 2021 B2A9535. 713 : 82,068,715 | S2AE3TI8] -
| 2/11/2021 | ®2953.714 | 32, 953 714 | 82963714 | -
S 26/11/202]1 | BZ.853.714 | 32 955 714 82,958,714 E
> ZB/127/2021 | 82963714 | 82,058,714 82958714 -
1/2/2022 82 553 '.-‘14 3.2 55714 EE.’,'EJESJH -
2S3/2022 32 953 '."14 | . 82 ‘.3}53 714 B2055,714 -
BOIEARORE | 50000000 SEmuu,ﬂDD 50,000,000 -
/442022 5_;;,953,?13 - 52,953,713 32 263,713 -
ZB/5/2022 | B2955714 F 82953714 | 82953 ?14 -
6/6/2022 | B4412895 | B | B4 412896 84,412.896 | -
PB/6/2022 | B4.412 896 _ B4412806 | 24412806 -
TOTAL | 998,362,930 | 60,000,000 | 1,058,362,930 | 1,058,862,930 |
I confivm that the amounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated
Prof. Jayee ], Agalo
Az, Vice Chancellor
Machakes University :
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